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SENATOR DEAN FLOREZ:  We'll start in just about a couple more minutes.  We're waiting for one other member showing up today and particularly traveling.

I want to more importantly say that this is a very important committee.  It is the Senate Select Committee on Air Quality in the Central Valley.


I would like to thank Senator Burton for allowing us to establish this committee and I'd like to thank Senators Machado and Senator Denham for serving on this committee, and if I could please tell you what we are trying to attempt to do.  This is a first hearing of 12 that we will have throughout the year at which we will travel throughout the Central Valley.  This might be the only hearing we have in Sacramento.  So for those of you who travel from Fresno and Modesto and places like Bakersfield, we will be coming to you soon because we believe this committee needs to go into the area that we're looking into, that is, the San Joaquin Valley, and I want to make sure that everyone understands that this committee is very serious about our mission, which is, in essence, to clean the air in the Central Valley in the best we can.


Let me also say that the committee members know that we do have some challenges.  Let me lay out those challenges to you today very quickly.  We're here to challenge common assumptions, some assumptions that say that somehow we can't clean our air in the Central Valley.  We're here to challenge exemptions.  And for those in industry, let me say very clearly that we are going to look at exemptions with a keen eye and to make sure that we are doing the right thing for the residents of the Central Valley in terms of the air that they breathe.


Lastly, let me say that we are here to challenge ourselves.  This committee obviously has a very big task.  We need to challenge our own assumptions here in the California legislature in terms of how to clean the air in the Central Valley.  So whether we're challenging our assumptions, challenging exemptions, or challenging ourselves, it's clear to me that the two members of this committee, Senators Machado and Denham, have a lot of work to do with me and to try to make sure this committee keeps on those assumptions.  Let me say that this committee hearing will be divided into four sections.


First, we're going to hear the impact of air pollution on the Central Valley, specifically hearing from the perspectives of families, schools, hospitals, and physicians, and local health agencies.


Next, we're going to hear from various representatives from state agencies.


Third, we will hear from representatives from air pollution advocacy groups, and that would be the Sierra Club and the Medical Alliance for Healthy Air, and I do believe the Latino Issues Forum will also be presenting today.


The final part of the hearing is obviously public testimony and we're very interested to hear public testimony.  Let me also say that it's very rare to have public testimony when you have a committee hearing in Sacramento in the middle of the day.


Most of what we will try to do is attempt to go out into the district and have the rest of these hearings as we conclude in various communities, whether it be Bakersfield of Fresno, in Tulare County, and Modesto County.  You name it; we'll be there.


Let me also say, that since we're under a little bit of a time constraint, I'm not going to rush you but I’m going to try to keep everyone to some sort of minimum.  We want to get the information for the committee.  This is being transcribed.  This will be part of a record and a final report will be issued by this committee somewhere next January.  By that, let me also say that we are introducing spot bills in this session, meaning that we will have bills ready to go if we hear something in this particular forum that we believe needs to be acted on immediately in this particular session, meaning the first year of a two-year session.


Let me welcome Senator Denham.


Thank you for joining us.  I look forward to serving with you today.  As I've just mentioned, we're going to start with our family's perspective on the impact of the Central Valley.  And Senator Denham, I don't know if you want to make a couple of statements or have anything to say.


Well, welcome.  Okay.  I'm sure you will once we have testimony.


If I could, let me have Kimberly Williams, Susan Bedi, and Sophia Hinojoza.  If all the families could please come up, and then I'm going to ask you to say a few words and I'll give you the order and then I've got some questions for you.


As you're coming up, first, let me thank you for taking the time out of your busy schedule.


Kerry, particularly, thank you for missing a day of school to be here.  I think it's extremely important that you're here.  Many times, we read stories but we don't get to connect the face with the story and I think your story is particularly important, and so thank you for being here.  It's very much appreciated.


Let me also, before we begin, talk about commending the Fresno Bee for their very large special, if you will, on air quality.  I've got to tell you that had quite a bit to do with this committee being started.


Kerry, the reason I mentioned that is you were prominently talked about quite a bit in that story and I'm going to ask you some questions about that in a little bit as well.


First, let's start with Kimberly Williams.  If you could just give us your perspectives.


MS. KIMBERLY WILLIAMS:  Good morning.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Good morning.


MS. WILLIAMS:  My son takes this, this, this, this, these, this, this, this, and this.  I don’t go anywhere without them.  This.  I can't travel; I can't go to the grocery store.  I have to take this wherever I go.  I have four to five sets of these and different family members, school, even has a bag of it at his church.  I even have a full bag of medication at my three year old's babysitter's house.  We don't know when an asthma attack is going to happen.


The air in Fresno is killing my son.  It's a slow killer.  That's what his pediatrician told me.  She gave me two options -- move or just deal with the asthma.  I'm not going to move.  My family's there; my job is there.


The conditions have been so bad, I've been laid off of work.  I now work for a family business.  I can't keep a job because every time I turned around his asthma was acting up.  I was being called off.  It's always something.


When he loses an inhaler, Medi-Cal -- I wish somebody from Medi-Cal was here -- they only pay for so much.  I was told yesterday by his pharmacist Medi-Cal would no longer pay for Abutoral.  This is rescue medication, rescue.  I'm going to have to pay for this.  It's going to be $35.  That's $35 sometimes I don't have.  I have forgone paying bills sometimes to get my son's medication.


What do I do?  Do I let him die or do I pay the bill?  Or I say screw PG&E; I say screw cable.  I'm going to make sure that my son has his medication.  I'm a single parent with one, single income.  That's it.  That's all.  I have help from my parents.  They have ____ but that is not their problem.  Kerry's my problem.  I had him.  He's my kid.


I'll never forget one time, Kerry didn't have his inhaler.  I screamed at him.


I said, "Do you realize, that if you lose your inhaler, I have to pay?  Medi-Cal will only pay for so much, Kerry?"


He started sobbing to me and said, "Mom, I loaned my friend my inhaler because his mom could not pay for his inhaler."


What was I to do?  How can I get angry at him about that?  He in turn was trying to help his friend to save his life, to keep his life going.  These are problems that I deal with on a consistent basis.  I check the air every time I leave my apartment.  If I know that it's a bad air day, I will not send Kerry to school.  I will not send him outside.


Clovis Unified and Kastner Intermediate has been very instrumental when Kerry's been sick and been in the hospital.  The shortest stay he's ever had was three days.  The longest is ten.


What do I do?  How do I choose?  I have a three-year-old and him.  He's a lot older now.  He can stay there at night by himself, but I've had to get babysitters.  I can't even begin to tell you about my personal life when it comes to a lot of stuff.


Kerry has told me at times, "Mom, don't worry about it.  I'm okay.  You go home and take care of E.J."


But these are the choices that I have to make.  There's a fire going on right now in Fresno County called the Nelson ?? fire.


Senator Florez, there was an emergency meeting.  He was the only senator that came himself to see what was going on.  Everybody else sent an aide.  He came.  I felt like, when he came, he was coming to see about my son.  He took a personal interest in my son's health.


You get my vote from here on out.  (Laughter)  No if, ands, or buts about that.  How many senators do you know who would take time from their family?  He came in the evening when they called an emergency meeting.


I do thank you for that from the bottom of my heart.


There are no sunny skies hardly in Fresno.  When the sun attempts to peak out, I think it just says, you know what?  Why?  Why should I even bother?  You people keep putting pollutants in the air.  I never, ever, ever thought that the asthma problem and the air pollution control problem was this bad as in Fresno.


I don't suffer from asthma.  I'm the type of person, I can tolerate smoke, cigarette smoke, whatever, but Kerry can't.  We can't even go to West Fresno where the fire is happening because of the air over there.  He can't even go visit his great-grandmother.  The majority of our family is over there.  We're segregated from them at this point in time.  We call, check, and see how they're doing but that's about it, but we cannot go over there.  Nobody can give me answers.


How many of your live in Fresno?  How many of you live in Fresno?  A few hands.  Everybody else, you don't understand what we go through at all.  When the Air Pollution Control District said "Spare the Air Day," you need to spare the air.  I used to say, oh, my God, these little ten-minute spots.  They're messing with the Simpsons.  I want to watch that.  But now I truly, truly understand that they are advocating for my son's health.  They have been very instrumental in giving me a lot of educational resources and made me understand what exactly was going on in Fresno.


The SUVs are the biggest problems.  I did not know that the emissions standards for them were so high.  I would love to have an Expedition or a Navigator but you know what?  I will stick to my little '95 Grand Am if that will save my son's life.  I'm at my wit's end.  I don't know what to do.  Maybe I should move.  Maybe we should start a new life somewhere.  What do you think?


MR. KERRY WILLIAMS:  Really, I want to stay in Fresno.  My family's there; I've been raised there.  I could have moved out to Georgia with my dad where the air is clean.  He just moved up to Iowa where it's even cleaner.  It has cold weather and all but still I want to stay in Fresno because that's just my birthplace; that's where my family is.  It's the only time I can really get to see all of them.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Kimberly, let me ask you some questions, if I could, and I knew you hit on some of them in your opening.


How many times have you had to take Kerry to the emergency room?


MS. WILLIAMS:  Kerry's been admitted to Children's Hospital six times within the last four years.


MR. WILLIAMS:  I had to miss two weeks of school last year at 6th grade.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Two weeks of school.


MS. WILLIAMS:  I want to say, that if it wasn't for respiratory therapists like Jennifer -- to me, that's my dream team.  Those are the people who truly know the effects.  They come in at 12 o'clock midnight, administer medication and stuff like that.  I don't know what I would do without them.  They do the hands on.  Everybody here is important.  Everybody has something to say, but those are the people that are saving my son's life on a consistent basis.  They know what needs to be done and when it needs to be done.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Kimberly, you mentioned the medications and you have quite an array of medications there.


How are families in the Central Valley?  And I know I'm just going to use Fresno for a little bit.  I'm sure I speak for people in Bakersfield and Modesto and other areas in Tulare County, but you must talk to other families as well who have these issues -- Kerry, you can chime in.  How are kids coping with all of this?  I mean how are you, in essence, paying for this?  You mentioned Medi-Cal.


MS. WILLIAMS:  My kid is a Medi-Cal kid, straight up.  He's a Medi-Cal kid.  Medi-Cal changes the rules on a consistent, daily basis.  They tell me we'll pay for this; and then two weeks later, when I go to pick up his medicine, the pharmacist tells me, with no aggression towards him:  I'm sorry; this isn't covered.


I have wrote bad checks and tried to beat the checks to the bank to get my son's mediation.  Do you understand what that's like as a single parent?  I don't want to have bad credit.  I want to give you your money.  You have bills to pay just like me but I will do what it takes to make sure that my son lives and is able to breathe and participates.


For the past two to three weeks, Fresno and Clovis Unified, they haven't had any outdoor activity for Kerry.  I will not allow him to play any outdoor sports.  He wanted to play football.  Look at my kid.  He's six feet, 200 pounds.  He's a perfect lineman for probably any school team, if not NFL team.  I will not let him play any outdoor sports because I told him, "You might have an asthma attack.  They don't know what you take."


I sit on the sidelines on a consistent basis.  Here he is the type of kid, he doesn't like taking his medicine.  It's uncool.  You know what some of his peers told him?


"Why do you take three inhalers just before PE starts?"


That's what he has to deal with.  Kerry has lied to me and my mother who's sitting right there and said, "Oh, yeah, I took my medication."

And his Advair is on 18.  If we don't stand watch over him, it will be on 18 Friday, Saturday, Sunday, Monday.  I have to be a watchdog over him.  He does not like taking this crap.  Do you blame him?  Look at this.  Look at all this.  This isn't fun for me to tote around.  I used to be able to carry a simple, little handbag.  Now I carry these huge bags.  I don’t buy any bag that's small.  To me, that's a joke.  I don't know why they even still make a small handbag.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Kerry, in terms of your participation in sports and the amount of school that you miss, how do you deal with that, missing so much school?  You mentioned two weeks last year alone.  Just from your perspective and other kids as well.  I mean you're obviously here speaking for a lot of kids that, again, the statistics in Fresno County, the highest asthma rate of any county in California.


What does that mean?  Your mom mentioned about a bad air day on television.  What does that mean to you when you see that on television?  What's your perspective on that?


MR. WILLIAMS:  Well, it means I have to miss a day of school or a lot of work because it's hard to make it up for my teachers.  Sure, I can get the work from my friends or my parents or something.  But still, to make up the work, still I have to study hard because most of the time when I'm sick, my mom, she doesn't want me to be up doing all that when I'm sick.  But still, I just get up; I study all through the night to 12:00, to 2:00 a.m.  I just try to finish it because my friends, they all have asthma too.  They know how I feel.  They help me because, really, I get injuries, sickness; I get everything almost every year.  I'm in the hospital…


MS. WILLIAMS:  And it's not an excused absence.  When he's in the hospital, it is not an excused absence.  That goes down as a regular absence.  It's not an excused absence.  I understand.  I'm not fighting the school districts for that.  But one of the things, like I said, Clovis Unified is very instrumental in making sure that Kerry is caught up on his school work.  They sent tutors. They do have teachers at Children's Hospital to make sure that the kids are staying caught up on their work.


I am very blunt with Kerry.  I tell him, like I said in the newspaper, "If you do not take your medication, you will die.  You will die.  You have to be responsible."


He is 12 years old.  I told him, "I will not be with you in this world always.  I will not.  You have to take some of the responsibility for yourself and take your medication."



We get into this on a consistent basis,  My mom plays referee on a consistent basis because I want to put the smack down on Kerry when he tells me, "Oh, I've taken my medication," and he's lying in my face.


My mom tells me, "Kim, stay calm.  You know, he's just a 12-year-old boy, you know, and boys do what they do."


Boys don't do what they do.  He needs to take his medication.  If you had a heart condition, you would make sure you had nitroglycerin tablets with you at all times.  He needs to be responsible; he needs to be responsible.  Everybody plays a part in this.  I am so tired.


Do you know that agriculture vehicles, they don't have required permits.  I was not aware of that.  They don't have smogs.  Why am I paying for a smog check and I have smog?  Where is my money going?  Somebody needs to answer.  Do I need to go down to the first floor and ask Gray Davis?  I will do that.  I will sit in his office and ask him.  I will say:  Where is my money going?  I'm paying for a smog.  I don't like paying for a smog.  That $34.95 included in the certificate.  I'm like, for what?  My car was only on your machine for ten minutes, and $40?  Where's the money going?  If I could put him in a bubble suit, I would.  I really would.  We've all seen the bubble boy movie.  I would if I could do that but I know that's just not the real world.  NASA makes the suit like that but I'm sure they're not going to rent to me, especially with my kid being a Medi-Cal kid, anything like that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I can only say that, Kimberly, you wouldn't have to go to the first floor.  You can probably start on the third floor and the first floor and that's the goal of these hearings, is to go out and to figure out what exactly we haven't done in this legislature.


MS. WILLIAMS:  It's not your problem.  It's everybody's problem.  Even I will admit, I live right across the street from a Walgreen's.  It's very easy.  Instead of me walking, to get in my car.  I should walk.  We all should use public transportation.  I understand what it's like.  Why should I, if it only takes me ten minutes to get there in my car and I’m on the bus for an hour?  Duh, it doesn't take a rocket scientist to say, you know, I'm just going to get in my car.


I can easily walk to a McDonald's but it's easier for me to get in my car.  I'm being lazy; I'm being selfish.  So what we don't do now, Mother Earth will do to us later.  My mom always said:  What's good for the goose will get the gander.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Kimberly, stick around.  Thank you very much for your testimony.


Kerry, stick around for a moment.


I want to go to Susan Bedi.  And if you can please give us your perspective.  You have a son, Ryan, and that would be very much appreciated.


MS. SUSAN BEDI:  Thank you for the opportunity.


I have a son, Ryan, who is 12 years old.  He was diagnosed with asthma at age three.  We were very fortunate that I have a great insurance policy that does allow him to have maintenance drugs.  However, I have a concern on the long term, the effects of what's happening to his body by taking all these medications.  We've had to change the regimen of his medications because his body builds up an immunity; then they no longer work.

Right now, he's on Advair, Singular, Clarinex, Albuterol as maintenance.  He's also in the past two weeks has had to take Prednazone as a rescue because of the air quality with the fires right now.  It has affected his asthma.  He's been out six days.


He does sports and he's very focused on it; but when I go to the games and I see 70 percent of the kids pull out their inhalers, it's just, well, that's the norm.  It shouldn't be the norm; it shouldn't be accepted.  I hear adults saying:  It's just asthma.  No.  It's not just asthma. You have to breathe or you die, bottom line.


I share the same fear of, if he's at a place where I can't get to him, he doesn't have the drugs that he needs.  We put a lot on a 12 year old, a lot of stress.  There isn't a normal day.  Every day when we get up, we check the paper for air quality.  We really don't need to; we know what it's like.  We all need to work together as a community to solve the problem.  It shouldn't be the norm to have asthma.

He had a coach in 6th-grade football.  I think we need to educate the people.  He was about to make a play at practice.  He was having an asthma attack.

The coach said, "If you don't make this next play, you're off the A team."

We need to understand this is not a simple disease and it is life threatening.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Susan, let me ask you a question.  You've obviously visited quite a few doctors as Kimberly has; is that correct?

MS. BEDI:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Has the advice of your physicians been to move from the valley, leave the valley, live somewhere else?

MS. BEDI:  At age five, my doctor said you would be better off moving from this valley.  I am a valley girl, born and bred, and it's not that easy to just pick up and leave when you have your jobs and your family and the support and you don't trust your child to just anyone when they're an asthmatic.  I had to take off quite a few days when he was young.  Yes, the recommendation was to move.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And obviously you chose not to do that.

MS. BEDI:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You mentioned something also that Kimberly mentioned.  You said you look in the paper.  Kimberly said you see it on the TV.  When you hear of a bad air day, what does that mean different to you obviously than to the populous?  I think we all hear bad air days.  We hear don’t go outside in many cases because of the Crippen/Fresno city fires, I call it, you know, that people are obviously not going out.


I mean for you particularly, what does that mean when you see one of those warnings and do you think they are truly -- I know they're doing a study and they're going to come out with some recommendations on whether ought not the 145 level is the right level.  But from your perspective, what needs to be done to improve that as someone who is really watching that?


MS. BEDI:  Well, for me personally, when I see this, the first thing I do is check his backpack, check the drug cabinet, that it's loaded with medications.  I don't have full confidence that what I'm hearing is -- I think it's worse than what I’m hearing and it put fear.  It affects the whole family and you hear this as just ____.  But, no, I truly don't think we're seeing the entire picture and this fire that has been burning for 30 days now.  I know that the long-terms effects are not even known and it concerns me and it scares me.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you don't have confidence -- that was the word you used in terms of, when you hear it on the news, you see it on the TV.  Kimberly says, you know, you see it.  I mean do, in essence, use that as a compass or a specific road map saying this is the day I'm not going to allow my kid out, or do you just know because children know what the air is like even before those warnings?  I mean is it a good indicator or not?


MS. BEDI:  I don't think so.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You don't think so?


MS. BEDI:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How can it be made better?  I know we've got experts and scientists coming up.  I'm talking from a perspective of a parent who really watches this.  What can we do to make that a better system?


MS. BEDI:  Put him in a bubble.  He still has to live his life.  One thing the pediatrician told me was to not handicap him with this disease.  So for them to tell me it's a bad air day, what's new?  You still got to go out and live your life and we'll put Band-Aids on it by giving all these medications.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


Sophia, thank for joining us and for hearing your perspective.


MS. SOPHIA HINOJOZA:  I also live in Fresno.  This fire has been burning for 30 days.  I've always been worried about the air quality.  I've never had asthma growing up, nobody in my family, so I don't know what it's like.  In 1996 in June, my son was born and he was diagnosed with asthma.  He was nine months when he had his first asthma attack.  We took him into the hospital because I had no idea what was going on.  It was just whistling noise coming out.  You always hear wheezing but I don't know asthma so I don't know what that is.


I take him into the hospital and the doctors looked at me like I was crazy.  He's having an asthma attack.  Don't you know the signs and the symptoms?  They diagnosed him with asthma.  They gave him inhalers that this nine-month-old baby has to breathe in somehow because he doesn't know how to, you know, so I'm blowing it in for him because he doesn't know how to do it.  He has had many asthma attacks since then.

Since he started school, his attendance has not been good.  Last year alone, he missed 33 days of school.  I am being SARBed, Mr. Florez.  That means I could get fined; I could even get put in jail because of my son's poor attendance.  They put him on the 504 program which is a program that helps kids with diseases that affect their schooling which is what saves me from not being fined and going to jail.  The teachers at his school are afraid.  A lot of teachers are afraid to have my son in their class because what do I do; what do I look for?  Oh, my God; oh, my God.  Bad air days?  His doctor called my house at 7 o'clock in the morning.

"Larry's not going to school, is he?"

This is all new to me because he's been home all these years.  He's in 1st grade now and I’m like, sure, he's going to school.  He's not sick.

"Do you know what the air quality is going to be like today, Mrs. Hinojoza?"

"Sure, it's going to be unhealthy.  What else is new?  It's always unhealthy."

"He is not going to school."

His doctor phones me at my house at 7:00 in the morning to tell me this, so my son doesn't go to school.

On the days where it's unhealthy but the kids can still go out and play, my son can't.  My son can't.  For two weeks, he could not go outside last year.  He's in 1st grade.  He needs to go outside and play and run and as his teachers call it, get the jitters out so he can sit in class and learn.

He goes into the office for his morning recess; he goes into the office for his lunch recess and does nothing but sit there and talk to all the VPs, the principals, all the secretaries, and they all say the same thing.

"Oh, he's such a great kid.  He's so smart, just wish he could get along with his peers."

He can't get along with his peers because he has no social life.  He doesn't do outdoor activities; he doesn't do sports; he doesn't do anything like that because he can't but he can get along great with adults.  He can get along great with adults.  He's just way great.

Last year in Fresno, there were 107 bad air days that children could not go out and play; 107 days my son stayed in an office.  When he misses school, he doesn't miss a day or two.  He misses a week or two.  Last year alone, he went to the emergency room six times.

I'm in debt $7,000 in medical bills.  That's it.  I make $9,000 [sic] a month as a teacher's aide.  That's my entire salary for the year.  Thank God I have a husband who, his job is, I guess to do everything else.  My job is just to take care of my son.

…(Side 2)…  His doctor told me, "He needs to get out of Fresno.  If you want your son to have a quality life, get out of Fresno."


I don't have an option in saying, oh, I'd like to move.  If I had to move to help my son live a better life, I'd move.  I'd call my family on the phone, hey, we're having a great time over here.  Larry hasn't had an asthma attack.  I'd move.  I can't afford it.  I can't.  I honestly can't.


He has to get a flu shot ever year because everybody gets the flu, right?  Everybody.  Getting the flu to my son could be fatal.  That could be fatal to him.  I have three children.  Nobody else has asthma.  Friday, my oldest daughter, she's 15.  Her school calls me up.


"Mrs. Hinojoza, you need to pick up your daughter.  She's not doing well."


I rushed from the emergency room, because that's where little Larry was with his asthma, to go pick her up.  I take her to the emergency.  Her face is pale.  She's having difficulty breathing.  They give her breathing treatment.  They couldn’t see what was wrong or anything.  Yesterday, I took her to the doctor.  She has been diagnosed with asthma and never had it.  My daughter is the number one catcher on her softball team.

Now she has turned around and said, "Maybe I'll just try out for another position, Mom.

She's worked three years to be the number one catcher and she may have to drop that, and that means no scholarship for her.  I can't apologize college.  She was promised a scholarship if she would catch.  She may not be able to do that now.  I can't afford college.  It's hard.  I'm going to have to work my tail off to get her there, but she was qualified for this college, a full ride.  I don't know if she can do that now.  She's worked three years, and in five minutes her dreams are gone.  Her dreams are gone.

I was diagnosed with asthma last year and I have never had asthma before.  They take Flovent, Serevent, Singular.  All these medicines that she has, my son has, my daughter has, and I have now.  I have my baby who's five and she doesn't have it right now but my daughter didn't have it either.  The air quality is not good; the air quality is not good. Maybe this fire -- I live on the west side.  I walked out of my house one day.  It was foggy that morning.  The mail comes to me at 3:00 p.m.   I walked out of my house.  I had to open the door and shut it really quick.  I walked out.  I went, gee, it's foggy out here.  It was smoke.  That's how thick it was.  It was smoke.

The coach to my daughter's softball team, that was one of the days.  They were not supposed to be playing because Fresno Unified sent out this big bulletin:  Do not send the children out.  Her softball coach made them go out.  If they wanted to play A ball, varsity ball, they better be there.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.

Let me ask all of you a question.  As you probably know, this legislature has not been as diligent about school nurses.  There's a bill that we've carried every year and every year it's killed to put a school nurse in every school.  Given that, in many cases, we have traveling nurses, people sharing nurses, maybe not on the site but in different parts of the district.


Then we had a bill that said, well, why don't we train our administrators to help recognize issues, such as asthma, diabetes, and some of these other issues in our schools, particularly in the Central Valley.

Do you see that as something that should be happening more or how do you feel about the fact that your children are at school; you're working, you know, single mom working; married, et cetera.  I mean what is going on from your perspective?


We're going to have our school administrators come up in a little bit and I've just to got to get your perspective as people that deal with the system, and I'd like to hear from all of you on just that point -- school nurses, school administrators -- having the training to recognize certain issues and particularly the bulletins that are issued by our school districts, ample notification by the Air District to them.  Is that getting to you in a timely manner?  So any of your perspectives on that would be helpful.


MS. HINOJOZA:  My daughter's coach yesterday, when she came and I told her coach I need her emergency card, coach -- I need to change it; she's got asthma; she was diagnosed today, "She doesn't have asthma."


She told him, "Coach," during that practice, "I need to use my pump.  I'm having some problems."


"Go ahead," is the look that she gets.


The nurse, I talked to the school nurse.  The school nurse was very concerned.  If she needs any help, if she has problems, have her come and talk to me.  My daughter's right here.


My son's school nurse at Winchell ??, excellent nurse.  She's always there asking how is he feeling?  Maybe Larry shouldn't go out today.


But people like coaches who do sports and teachers, they're afraid to have my son in their class because he's got asthma.  Well, what do I look for?  What do I do?  Oh, my God.  Larry's in my class.

I have to go over there and talk to them and explain to them, "Look, this is what you've got to look for."


I tell them, "Lift his shirt up.  Look at his stomach.  If it's doing this, he's got to go.  Look at his throat."


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who are you talking to when you're saying to look at it?


MS. HINOJOZA:  I'm talking to his teachers.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.


MS. HINOJOZA:  I'm very active.  I have to be.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You think our teachers…


MS. HINOJOZA:  They need more education.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That's my question.


MS. HINOJOZA:  They need more.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How about administrators?  I mean you have a school nurse.  I mean you're fortunate to have one at your school.


How about any of you?  In terms of the schools you attend?  Everyone have a school nurse?


MS. WILLIAMS:  I don’t want a school nurse.  I don't feel like school nurses are respiratory therapists.  Jennifer can look at Kerry and tell whether he's getting ready to have an asthma attack.  She can look at his face, his nostrils, his chest.  Those are the type of people that need to be in the school nurse's offices.  I understand that school nurses are there. They're probably very, very well trained.  But a respiratory therapist knows when our kids are sick.  To me, they're first string; they're not second string.  I need a first-string person that will take care of my son.


I’m like her.  I can only drive so far.  Senator Florez, I've been pulled over by the CHP twice taking Kerry to Children's Hospital.


I tell them, "Don't mess with me.  Give me an escort.  Do what you've got to do.  Take me to jail.  Get my son to the emergency room."


Kerry's 200 pounds.  I can lift him, if I need to be.  I can.  But those are the type of people that need to be in the schools.  I understand everything is always the budget.  Everything deals with money.  I know they can only do what they can do, but I feel that those are the type of people that need to be in the nurse's office, is the respiratory therapist.  They need to have some type of respiratory training.


Kerry, and I know we all have done this before.  Before the school district changed their policy, kids could not carry their inhalers in their backpacks.  He could get suspended.

MS. HINOJOZA:  Yes, it's a drug.

MS. WILLIAMS:  He could have gotten suspended.


I used to tell Kerry, "Keep it in your pocket.  Don't let them see it.  If you get in trouble, I will take the blame for you."

It was until a child died when they changed their policy.  It took a death.  That's when they changed their policy.

That's when they changed their policy, Senator Denham.  That's when, when a child died.  Some woman's child is six feet deep so my son could be here today and carry his inhaler in his backpack.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That was in 1996.


MS. WILLIAMS:  Exactly.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MS. HINOJOZA:  I think she's right.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Ms. Bedi, let me just ask you as well, your perspective on training, school training, school nurses, administrators recognizing this, teachers -- what's your perspective?


MS. BEDI:  I do believe that our administrators, teachers, and support staff do need to have some sort of training on asthma and when a child is in need because -- I speak for myself.  Twelve year olds do not always make the best judgment call.  And when they are lacking oxygen, it just worsens.  I would appreciate having someone at the school site that could assist in decisions and controlling how much of the inhaler they're using because they also can develop an immunity to that also, so I do feel that coaches, teachers, administrators -- the more support we can get, the better.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MS. WILLIAMS:  Senator, I live in an All American City that has the third nation's worst air quality.  I live in an All American City that has the third worst air in the nation.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That's Clovis, right?


MS. WILLIAMS:  No.  That's Fresno.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Fresno.  Okay.


MS. WILLIAMS:  I love Fresno.  I don’t want to move.  But if I just have to, I will.  But where am I to move?  There's air pollution everywhere.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  Let me say a couple of things before I excuse you.


Number one, thank you for taking your time.  I want you to know that you are speaking on the plight of every child who could not be here today.  I want you to recognize I think you’ve a good job of characterizing what I think what most parents are calling and telling our staff in terms of what we need to look at.


I will say that we plan to see you in Fresno.


Kimberly, you know that we've got three hearings still planned in the area so we look forward to continue talking to you.  Thank you for traveling all the way to Sacramento.


I'm might just, before we go to the next panel, which is schools, I would like to have Kerry kind of give us your closing and your impression.


What is it that we should be doing up here?  We're your legislators.  We write laws.  Give us what you think.  If you were sitting on the other side right here, what would you do?


MR. WILLIAMS:  Well, definitely, I want to thank God for allowing me to carry around my asthma inhaler.  That way, I won't have an asthma attack.  But still, I agree with my mom and these two women right here that go through this.  I agree because they should train these people to recognize that stuff.  There are a few teachers there that are trained in that, like my Health Science.  She'll look at me or all I do is tell her about my throat or something like that.  She'll send me to the office.  She'll send me my stuff; she'll send me with a note; she'll make sure that I go home and I get the attention needed.


In 6th grade, my teacher, Mr. Ivekovich ??, he will call at the hospital.  He will make sure if I was okay.


My PE coach, he knows what my limits are.  He can just tell right then and there.  He'll tell when I walk in or just sit down or just take a breather.  There are a lot of things that can be done about the Medi-Cal, about the inhaler, about the medicine that we have to take, about the air pollution.  There's lot so stuff that you guys can change.  I can't name it off the top of my head but I'm sure that you guys can think about it, put your heads together.  I don't know.  I don't care really.  Just do something.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do something, and we'll just leave it at that and I think that's probably the most appropriate.


Senator Denham, you have some questions.


SENATOR JEFF DENHAM:  I don't have any questions.  I actually just have a comment.  I would like to thank all of you for coming in today.  I only wish my mom could be here.  When I grew up, she was a single mother.  I grew up with asthma.  I was out on the football field with my inhaler so I understand, Kerry, what you're going through.  It's a tough battle.


What I'm hearing is that we need more education in our school system.  That might be an opportunity for us to expand on but I think that we're here today to focus on a solution that's going to improve your quality of life and that's improving the air quality in the Central Valley.  I represent Madera up to Modesto and it's not, it's just as bad as Fresno.  It is pretty close so we definitely need, we have a problem here.  We definitely need to focus on it.  It's a problem I'd like to see shared throughout the state, including the Bay Area, and coming up with creative solutions that aren't going to lose jobs but will focus on the future and improving air quality so I appreciate you coming today and I'm moved by your testimony because I've been there personally, dealt with the same situation as you, Kerry.


MR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, all.  We'll see you back home.


MS. HINOJOZA:  Can I say one more thing?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MS. HINOJOZA:  The City of Sanger is ten miles from Fresno, ten  miles, that's nothing.  Monday, the City of Sanger demolished a building by burning it.  They lit it on fire and burned it because the firemen needed practice. It was an unhealthy air day and  my son was spending the night at his nana's house who lives in Sanger.  She had to call me to come and get him because he wouldn’t stop coughing.  That should not be happening.  It was unhealthy there and it's unhealthy here.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I agree.  We will definitely look at that immediately.  Thank you very much.


Thank you all very much.


Let's have our school perspective.  We have Santiago Wood, Superintendent, Fresno Unified School District; Elaine Beyer, Director of Health Services, Fresno Unified School District.  And as you're walking up, I want to thank Dr. Wood and Ms. Beyer for being here today.  I'd particularly like to thank you for helping us put together some of our witnesses.  It's very much appreciated, and thank you for taking time as well to be with us today.


I'd like to see if you can just give us a brief opening, if you could, your perspectives, and then I have some questions for you.


MR. SANTIAGO WOOD:  Thank you very much, Senator Florez, and thanks to the rest of the committee members that expressed an interest in this situation.  I could be the poster child for superintendents in California because I too have my bag of medication.  I'm on my third year on a four-year contract at Fresno Unified and I've never suffered from any problems until I came to Fresno.


Over a year ago, I seriously considered my family in relocating from Fresno.  That speaks to the problem that the Fresno area will continue to have in terms of high-quality professionals that can't have a quality of life that's befitting for themselves and their family in terms of their personal health.


I have been on shots, eight shots a week, for 11 months, been on a year of heavy-duty antibiotics.  I've had herbs; I've had acupuncture; I've tried everything in the book and I’m still having some challenges.


To say that is a serious problem is a gross understatement.  As Ms. Williams said, it is a silent killer; it is a deadly problem; it's a deadly challenge that we all face.


I believe that this committee has an obligation to come up with some non-negotiable regulations that they're non-negotiable and I have a ____ I'd like to propose, but I also want to speak for the 82,000 youngsters in our district that are at risk.  We experience attendance drops on a daily basis between 1,200 and 1,500 students that are absent and Ms. Beyer, our Director of Health Services, will verify that the two most prevalent causes are head lices and upper respiratory illnesses.  She will give you some more details in terms of what that looks like for our kids.


We joined forces with the EPA about 18 months ago when we began to get lots of complaints from our teachers and staff.  It's not only a problem that impact our students but it impacts our employees, so we also experience high absenteeism rates, not only with students but employees.  Of course, our attendance accounting, our regulation does require, that when students are absent for three to six consecutive days, they become truants and then you've got to go through a process.  Although we work with the parents and the student, it's not a perfect system and lots of things fall through the crack but we do have employees that are also impacted by this issue so we have joined forces with the EPA and we have a program with the EPA.  We brought a copy of the tape for you where the EPA is working with our district too and several other districts to identify indoor environmental issues that we can in fact control, issues of mold, identification of mold, issues of the air quality within the building, issues of changing the filters more readily, and issues of how the ventilation indoor systems are placed are extremely critical and this speaks to the construction site.


We can look at smart ways.  In fact, there's a kit that the EPA has given to every one of our classrooms.  It's called a Smart Tool Kit which is really a program of awareness, education, and advocacy for being aggressive about addressing those things that can be addressed indoors to mitigate impact of the bad air quality.  In our science lab, we looked at how those science labs are situated, particularly with chemicals and other kinds of toxic emissions and bringing pets and having different kinds of laboratory animals and that setting also creates an environmental problem, so we've looked at that in terms of what may be happening.


We have had to cancel a number of our athletic programs.  We work daily and we have an environmental administrator who works daily with the EPA and other agencies to ensure that we can get information out on an immediacy basis to all of our schools and all of our administrators but that, even and of itself, is not enough because oftentimes you have no control over the situation but we do take a proactive stance to monitor the air quality, notify our administrative staffs, and help staff and also our athletic staff. 


I think the paper -- I certainly also want to compliment and thank our parents who joined us today on the journey here and to compliment the Fresno Bee because we have approached the Fresno Bee about setting up a joint curriculum between ourselves and the health collaborative and making us available online for our staff and our employees and also providing some support to include some aspects of identification, awareness, education in our curriculum.  So the Fresno Bee has agreed to work with our school district and work with the health collaborative in Fresno to at least have an impact and that ought to be an effort that can be supported.


In addition, let me just give you some ideas and some thoughts now that I think would be appropriate for this committee to address that may be, which I consider to be, imposing non-negotiable regulations.  I think we have, we know that this will take a comprehensive approach.  There's no single way.  There are many, many multiple right answers, but I think we should immediately ban all wood-burning fireplaces in the Central Valley and we can either address all new construction or in-fill or modernization but it should be banned.  We should ban all further dairy producing.  This impacts the economy but I think there's some alternative way of cleaning that up because, when we look at the Fresno Bee story, Fresno, Central Valley, has the highest number of dairy-producing, 24-hour-a-day, 24/7 operation.  We should ban all diesel emission.

The President, in his State of the Nation, did in fact spoke to the issue of incentives for clean burning fuel vehicles.  We should be the first in line to ask the federal government for assistance to have the Central Valley become a demonstration center for technology other than the carbon-dioxide-emitting technology we currently have.


We should look at the federal government as this place being designated, the Central Valley, particularly Fresno County, Tulare, Kings, Madera County, being designated as one of the primary targets for the Superfund cleanup as did Denver and Los Angeles several years ago have made tremendous strides but they were able to rely on federal support to make this happen.


We can create incentives for businesses and incentives for entrepreneurs to in fact move in this direction to find alternative ways for these kinds of fuel emission, whether they be transportation mode or business-related mode.  We should also establish an ongoing health collaborative that would be funded and sponsored by this committee that would monitor and bring back to this committee ideas, suggestions, research in the field, and best practices that can in fact be adopted by this committee to become the norm.


I think it's important that we create a section in our funding code that would be mandated costs for these kinds of things.  We are spending an inordinate amount of dollars in just mold cleanup and environmental cleanup that it's not unlike -- it's unlike any other place I've been  and  I'm approximating my 30th year in public school education in California now and I was in Berkeley, in Oakland, and Richmond and San Jose and now in Fresno; and the challenges I have seen in environmentally both indoor and outdoor are unlike any I've seen in my former settings, particularly with the costs of cleaning up our indoor environment with mold and air quality issues that were not prevalent in the Bay Area where I came from or in San Jose and this ought to be a mandated cost.


The issue of training for our nurses and our health care professionals, our administrators, and our staff should be required.  It should be non-negotiable.  For example, under both state and federal regulations, we are now requiring certification training every year on sexual harassment, on CPR, and other kinds of regulations.  I think identification of these upper-respiratory diseases, and particularly identification of a sensitivity and awareness of how to deal with children suffering from these diseases, ought to be a required, certified training.  Whether it's eight hours of training required for all school personnel on a yearly basis, this ought to be done; it ought to be recovered through mandated costs recovery.


We ought to change the current attendance accounting system because children that are chronically ill were out of school for extended periods of times and we have tons of them in Fresno Unified.  And being the fourth largest school district in California and having 1,200 to 1,500 youngsters out of school on a daily basis, one could easily look and say, my God; you have a truancy problem.  But when we get beyond that, we have a health crisis in our community.  So we get penalized for these extended absences and we have to implement SARB; we have to follow the law.  If you're out of school, you become a truant.  Your parents must be notified; you must be SARBed; we've got to get law enforcement involved when in fact these children are legitimately ill.  So all of the paperwork, the record keeping, the assistance, the support -- we do not have that from the state currently and it is a tragedy for us in our community where we are right now.


So I think that these are just a few ideas and I want to thank you for taking the time and interest and involvement and the rest of your colleagues that are working in this very, very important work.  It is extraordinary for me personally.  I've never had the kind of experience that I've had since I've been in Fresno and it's not going to get any better.  I'm in my third year of a four-year contract and I've got serious conversations with our board of trustees about my long-term survivability in Fresno for myself and my family.


Thank you very much for the opportunity.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Dr. Wood, and thank you for those short 11 points.  It's quite a lot of work for us to do but I think the issues you mentioned, the non-negotiables, is a critical phrase, meaning that I assume you're that saying that these are things that are long overdue --


DR. WOOD:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  -- and should be implemented?


DR. WOOD:  Yes.  You've got to walk the talk.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Before we go on to Elaine, Dr. Wood, let me just ask you a question.


You mentioned a very important issue of the difference between the school districts that you've worked in, and obviously everyone has challenges.  You mentioned Richmond and others.  But from your perspective, on a health perspective, how are the kids different in terms of the way that they are in essence studying, the way that they are immersing themselves?  There have been talk about being social or not social or not have the ability to communicate with their children.


What's the health effects of the Central Valley?  What's different about the children?  You've been in both systems.  You have an even perspective but what's different?


DR. WOOD:  Well, there's no question that health plays a critical part in learning; and the factors are both external and internal.  And if a child is sick, the child cannot focus, cannot concentrate, cannot be in school in attendance.  Every day that a child is out of school, it impacts learning.  It impacts your chances of succeeding.  You've heard some powerful testimonies here by these parents who talked about the impact on their children.



When I go to schools and I visit schools, I very, very regularly -- I call my Fridays Good Fridays because, when I'm not visiting schools, one of the first persons I ask to speak with is the nurse.


I said, "Tell me about what's happening here."


The nurse would say, "Come see my cabinet, Dr. Wood," and opens a cabinet and then I am just absolutely blown away.


I said, "These are children."


I'm an older, mature adult and I used to run a lot, jog a lot.  I can't jog outside in Fresno any more so I ended up joining Ballys Gym so I can work out at the gym but I was able to run outdoor in my other settings without problems, but my health has been challenged now due to that environmental factor.  It does have a significant, detrimental impact on a child's learning.

Asthma is a debilitating disease.  I had a friend who's a superintendent who died in the office with asthma.  It's also stress related.  When you have stress and the compounded pressures of studying and learning and trying to meet deadlines as a student and you're not healthy and you're on medication, it impairs your learning.


There's always issues about, well, our kids are not succeeding in comparison to other larger, urban settings.  Well, I will challenge and won.  We have some of the brightest, most gifted, and talented youngsters that are just a wonderful, wonderful tribute to our community and our culture.  I find that kids in Fresno to have a greater sense or character and a greater sense of community service and a greater sense of patriotism than I have seen in my other settings, and I say that without being disingenuous.  I say that very honestly.  I am proud and pleased and privileged and honored to work with the children and families of whom we currently work and share the leadership role in Fresno Unified.  But they're challenged by a silent killer.  It is a silent killer as Ms. Williams very well stated.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Dr. Wood, the reason I ask that is obviously we live in a urban-dominated legislature.  The question I have, having both served, yourself, in an urban setting, in a larger populated area in essence, it is simple question.  If you take 20 kids, same teacher, same month in Richmond and you take 20 kids, same month, same teacher in Fresno and you follow them for a year and what actually -- is there an environmental difference?  We normally don't think, you know, all those things being constant, what would happen at the end of the year, given the air in Fresno versus the air in the other…


DR. WOOD:  Senator Florez, you have selected an excellent analogy because, when I was in Richmond for eight-and-a-half years, we were challenged too, because, as you know, Richmond has one of the largest oil refinery processing plants -- Chevron and Texaco, et cetera.  In the early '90s, there was a severe spill and an explosion that was created by one of the Chevron processing refining oil or refining factory.  It did have a debilitating and devastating impact on the community.  There were multiple class-action lawsuits and multiple settlements, but I think there could be a good parallel drawn.  It could be a good parallel drawn between some of the impact that we have seen in socio-economically disadvantaged communities living along the shoreline of the Richmond Bay, the Richmond Marina, in close proximity to the Chevron refinery plant where there were high levels of toxins in their blood; there were high levels of anemia, toxemia, lead, contaminants, and you will find that in any of these settings where children are exposed constantly.


We'll ask Mrs. Beyer to speak to the issue.  We have a parent mobile, a medical mobile, that we take around to our community and we are evaluating kids from zero to five in terms of healthcare.  When we had Ms. Beyer come and make a presentation before a school board, we were astounded to find these high levels of toxins in the blood of our children, even before they come to us in school right in Fresno Unified, and we are doing a lot of health screening and making the appropriate referrals for these youngsters before they come to us for school.


But you have really hit the nail on the head.  The long-term, debilitating effects and impacts of the ongoing exposure.  It gets to the point of being irreversible.  Whether you're in Richmond, California, surrounded by the contaminants of the oil refining industry or you're in Fresno, California, surrounded by the other environmental contaminants, kids become the loser and families become the losers.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Dr. Wood.  I very much appreciate that.


Elaine, do you want to give us your opening?  And I do want to get to my questions and I want to move onto the next panel.


MS. ELAINE BEYER:  So you're saying keep it short and sweet so you've chosen the wrong person.  (Laughter)


I'm Elaine Beyer, Director of Health Services for Fresno Unified, which means that I am a registered nurse, a public health nurse, with administrative credential.  But most of all, I am a school nurse and school nurses are prepared to the level of a four-year baccalaureate degree, plus the fifth year, so they're very well educated.  I felt the need to say that, and we love your bill.  Bring it on again, please.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We are.


MS. BEYER:  Great.  School children in California are routinely screened for vision, hearing, dental, scoliosis, immunization, and diseases.  They are not screened for asthma and allergies.  However, allergic diseases are one of the most significant causes for school absences, as you've heard the parents say and from Dr. Wood.


To underscore the seriousness of the problem, I did a random survey of 30 of our 86 school nurses in Fresno, and they rated asthma as the number two reason for absences, only second to head lice, I’m afraid.  Lots of ADA is excessive, to say the least.


It's my belief and the belief of my colleagues that there are hundreds of undiagnosed asthma cases in Fresno and hundreds more of our youngsters with asthma that are not properly treated or controlled.  Asthma can cause permanent lung damage and it kills.  You know that.


The trends in Fresno Unified are alarming and I'm going to provide you with some statistics that we've accumulated from the year 1989 to 1990 to the present.  The district experienced an increase of enrollment of about 25 percent.  However, during the same period, the asthma rate grew 218 percent.


Do we have a crisis?  You betcha, and the numbers speak for themselves.  The barriers to care are many and you heard our parents talk about barriers to care -- poverty, which may preclude children from regular, medical visits to poverty that forces children or parents to choose between buying only one of the two prescribed inhalers.  The children of the poor are the victims.


Mrs. Williams was talking about Medi-Cal and I would pray that more of our families have Medi-Cal to cover some of the expenses.  But what we're finding in our health center is that our parents are working poor.  They have no resources.


Another barrier to care is lack of correct information, lack of correct information in the appropriate language, written and spoken.


The last barrier to care that I will mention is incorrect diagnosis and treatment.  Practitioners who lack the most current information needed to diagnose and to treat comprehensively are not being updated.  For whatever reason, they're not seeking continuing education in this field.


However, perhaps more significant than the barrier to care is the barrier to wellness.  I believe that the deplorable quality of air in the Central Valley has indeed contributed to the staggering rise and identified asthma cases in Fresno.  As responsible adults, we can't tell our kids to be careful and avoid risk.  Don’t play in the street, put on your coat, wash your hands, but we can hardly tell our youngsters don't breathe when you go outside.


We are helpless to curb the need for children to play outdoors so it's up to us, responsible, caring adults, those of us in the room and beyond, to clean up this mess, for lack of a better word.  Give us the air that doesn't choke us and relegate us and our children to lives of declining health.


I might add that I'm Delano, born and raised, and came to Fresno about six years ago and now I am asthmatic.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just two questions, and I think you've answered what I was going to ask you through your presentation.  But in terms of the cost to absences, lost time in classroom, special provision costs to the district, any idea what that is on an annual basis, Dr. Wood?


DR. WOOD:  Eight million dollars in terms of days of lost attendance.  And when we dissect that down, it's more like a $6 million figure that's directly related to health issues.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So let me just use an analogy.  If the governor somehow, in his mid-year cuts -- God forbid he'd do it but he did it -- cuts Medi-Cal payments and more kids fall off the roles and it's about half, is about cut in half, the state would probably see an approximate increase of money that were going out the other side of K-12 of maybe $16 million or $10 million or something like that?  So as we cut, we may also increase on the flip side of what we're paying out on Prop. 98 dollars.  Is that a pretty much correct characterization?


DR. WOOD:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So more kids off that program, Kimberly mentioned, means a whole host of other problems for you?


DR. WOOD:  Yes.  It impacts enrollment.  But beyond that, beyond the dollars and cents, it impacts their future because learning stops.  It impairs learning, if you're talking about the quality of life and our future leadership that's at risk.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I'm just trying to do straight numbers.  You know, we're going to cut some Medi-Cal, kids are going to fall off, kids are going probably in essence, you know, impact your attendance rate and I'm just trying to get a number, and about $8 million seems to be -- and maybe if we doubled that, 16, and what have we really gained?


Okay.  The other question I had, in terms of the schools being notified, Kimberly mentioned it.  I just want to know how it works.  Schools are notified if there's a bad air day.  How do you work with the Pollution Control Board?  Are you notified ahead of time?  What kind of provisions do you give to notify teachers that the air is bad on that day?


MS. BEYER:  That would really be a Dr. Wood question.  What our nurses have done is that, well, I have worked recently, just as recently as last year, with the Air Quality Board, to change the standards, make it a little more concrete, feeling that perhaps 141 was not correct.  What we were able to come to agreement on is that we have guidelines and our nurses present those guidelines at the beginning of the year, to everyone on campus, that through the month of May through October, children should exercise before 11 a.m.  In the other months, exercise after 11 a.m. but also keeping in mind that there are days when they shouldn't be outside at all.  So that was the only terminology we could come to agreement on.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That's terminology.  Is that translated into real policies at the schools?


MS. BEYER:  Guidelines only.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So in other words, we have guidelines but we're not sure schools are following those guidelines, so what good are the guidelines?


MS. BEYER:  Well, they're apprised of the situation and we're hoping that they're following it as conscientious teachers, coaches, et cetera.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But is this something that the schools should implement?


DR. WOOD:  Certainly.  Senator Florez, you may want to also…



SENATOR FLOREZ:  I understand that the whole hard part about changing the world.  But if we've got the worst air and our asthma rates increased 218 percent and you're telling me you've got recommendations and guidelines to in essence kind of work with the tough months, May through October, and I'm wondering why we wouldn't implement…


DR. WOOD:  Well, it goes beyond that because we're tied into an academic calendar and I tried to make a comment about the impact of parents.  I want to compliment our PTAs and our parent groups because our parents have been really advocating for us to be more sensitive to the -- we have the indexes now and we know what the trend line says and the highest period normally is when you have the sun that is highest, and so the month of August is a high-risk month for us.  Although many of the districts in the Central Valley starts school in the month of August, we do and we've had parents come to the table and said, as we talk about changing our calendar to minimize those days but then it's a double-edge sword because kids that have no means of having air conditioning in homes or coolers, they come to schools and at least we have our rooms air conditioned or whatever.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I read that in the Fresno Bee about the conflict between that.  I guess I'm asking more specific questions, forget the months.  If we know that there are certain periods of the day, how can we restructure P.E. or outdoor activities so really children are inside studying at the time that would be the worse.  So in other words, one class would be out in P.E. while the other class -- is that a function of not enough P.E. teachers…


DR. WOOD:  Actually, you'd be amazed of how entrepreneurial our principals are.  Our principals, I give them a whole lot of credits. They are aware of the issues, they're aware of the children's conditions; they work closely with the staff.  We have a full-time, we had to hire a full-time environmental specialist to monitor and manage this and communicate with all of our sites. We have 125 school sites, 82,000 kids, and one person works with all of the appropriate agencies -- EPA, the Air Quality Board, the hospitals -- and we do send messages out group wise before the end of the day and first thing in the morning as an alert.  We try to look at this in a window of about three to five days and try to get the early alerts out.  The principals use their best judgment when they work with the parents and they work with the parent groups to make it happen.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me go back again to the same point.  You have a person who does this full time.


DR. WOOD:  That's correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I guess my question is this -- let me just do this:  Could you get back to us, this committee, on what it would look like, how much it would cost, as even feasible, in those bad months, and I understand we're off school during the summer months.  But to restructure our entire classroom activities so kids are really inside, good or bad days -- I mean obviously bad days, they've got it all.  I'd just like to know what that looks like and I would like to know what the barriers are to that.  This is part of our task here, is to try to figure out innovative ways to look at things, given the bad air, and obviously we want to clean the bad air.  But in the meantime, we'd like to see, and you mentioned the principals being very good at this.  I just would like to know what all our schools are doing, particularly in your district, because I just kind of want to figure out if that's a workable thing, the rest of our district should be doing.  Remember, we've got a lot of districts under Fresno Unified, the fourth largest, you're the biggest.  Maybe we can try to model something off that.


The last question I have, and I don't know if Senator Denham has a question.  The 504 Program was mentioned by the parents.  What is the 504 Program; how does it work; what's the problems that you just heard?


MS. BEYER:  The 504 that she is referring is a program that actually puts in writing the modifications that are going to be done by a child and it is, I believe, the Civil Liberties Act and what occurs, if a child is not qualified or does not qualify for special education, a 504 Plan is made.  And for our children with medical issues, it's how people are going to modify on a daily basis, how those children will cope with his daily routine.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  Appreciate it.


Yes, Doctor, a comment.


DR. WOOD:  The issue of looking at all of the elements that are attributable to the air quality that leads to the devastating effect to impact on our schools should be in the mandated cost category so that the schools can take appropriate action for the benefit of the children and that there is some way of recovering those costs.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And I would say, Dr. Wood, in every one of your recommendations, you said that and we get it.  We were going to ask you to do it.  We're going to try to pay for it, definitely.  Thank you.  I just want to make sure your point was heard loud and clear.


Okay.  What we're going to hear, and I want to thank you both.


Dr. Wood, again, thank you for helping us get some folks here.


We would like to now have hospitals and physicians.  And for those of you in the audience, let me give you the schedules since we went a little long in the morning.  We're going to hear from this panel and we'd like this panel to go from 11:15 to no later than noon.  Then we're going to hear from local health agencies.  We're going to listen to them from noon to 12:30.  Then we're going to hear the state's perspective and that is going to basically -- we're going to ask you to try work with us from 12:30 to 1:00 and then we are done so we want to make sure, so as you are giving your presentation, the most -- we're going to try to confine you a little bit but obviously there is some very important information here and we're going to continue that schedule.  So again, this panel of hospitals and physicians, 11:15, and let's try to ____ through this as close as possible.


Thank you for joining us both.


Do we have Dr. David Pepper, Assistant Clinical Professor, University of California, San Francisco; and Jodi McEdward, Respiratory Therapist, Saint Agnes Hospital.  Thank you both for being here and we'll follow your lead from here.


DR. DAVID PEPPER:  Thank you, Senator Florez.


First, to thank you for convening this.  I think you've got your work cut out for you and obviously the impact it has on people is huge.


I'm going to try to go quickly and just talk about the impacts on the health in the Central Valley.  In addition to being on the faculty at UCSF in Fresno -- I've been there 13 years -- I've got a son who's a severe asthmatic in Kaiser.  I also worked for ten years in the emergency room and I direct and provide medical oversight to the Asthma and Education Program which has worked with our schools and health policy.


So a little bit about air quality.  It's been mentioned that ____ percent of asthma in the valley were 11 percent.  You mentioned Fresno was 16 percent.  We have areas in the valley with up to 23, even 30 percent selectively.


How bad is our problem?  Fresno, as mentioned, in a previous speaker, as number three in the nation behind Chicago and New York, one in six of our children.  Fresno is also number two in the nation in smog.  It's fairly obvious what the link is there.  Los Angeles is number one for the one-hour exceedences but we're number one for the eight-hour exceedences.  We're number one in particulates and the estimates are $300 million alone in asthma and that is probably the tip of the iceberg in terms of emphysema and cancer which my colleague will speak to.


This was the school data that Dr. Wood referred to.  The top blue line is the asthma.  The pink line, you can see under that, is number of children carrying inhalers to school.  The blue line, which you can barely see coming off the bottom, is the ADHD which we use as a marker.  According to our data which we presented to the CDC, it's actually a 600 percent rise in the last 15 years.  We're going up about a half percent a year.


Air pollution will be addressed by later speakers, but basically there is the invisible, the BOx, NOx, ROx, SOx ozone and the visible, the smoke and soot, and I think you'll hear from several of our other speakers, that while we do play a lot with ozone, particulates are as much a problem.  It might address the question I thought you were putting to Dr. Wood, and that is, simply that during the summer when you've got ozone, you keep the kids outside during the morning, not in the afternoons.  In the winter, flip that, put them out in the afternoon, and we've done that somewhat in the school district.  It's tough in terms of sports but…


Particulate load, one of the things you'll address, I know a lot of the constituents are farming and farms certainly play a particulate load, a role in the particulate load -- unpaved roads, tilling of the farms, _____, wind dust, ag burning, wildfires.  I would commend both yourselves in terms of your information but also Dr. Wood.  I think the fireplace ban would be one and the diesel, certainly looking at diesel.  I know we have technology to put 15 part per million diesel in, in California and yet we allow trucks to drive through on 99 with 500 part per million diesel.  Let's go for the low-hanging fruit but particulates are certainly part of it.


Smaller particles more concern.  Here is 70 microns.  We talk about the PM-10, PM-2.5, and then even smaller, the ultra-fine fractions.  This is the ten micron less which gets into the lungs; 2.5 gets even lower, and actually gets down to the point of penetrating the blood-lung barrier so that those particles actually get into the blood and cause problems there.


If I'm going too fast, I think you've got copies of most of the slides.  Acutely, we know that ozone and particulates can trigger, you know, inflammatory responses -- baso spasm, inflammation in the nose, to the tip of the lung.  We recognize that is basically one organ now.  Everything from asthmatic and bronchial ?? flares to sudden cardiac death, chronically we know we're seeing all kinds of remodeling.


I saw some slides yesterday from a 33-year-old man who died of a motor vehicle accident who have changes consistent with what we would expect to see in 60-year-old smokers.  The tip of the iceberg, in terms of emphysema, cancer and heart disease are, I think, are going to bite us.  We know nationally they're killing 60,000 people a year.  In Fresno County alone, 1,300 people will die prematurely this year, 1,300.  That's out of the UCLA study and that's probably an underestimate and that only speaks to deaths.


Of particulates ______ of the blood, we tracked them.  We know that they increase cardiovascular vents and we know that peaks have been linked to hospitalizations, increasing both morbidity.  And Kaiser presented some study to the California Air Resources Board which again I believe some of my colleagues later will speak to you and that we've done.


I probably don't need to go over this but, you know, asthma, as with many of these, is an inflammatory response triggered by irritants.


The AQI, we routinely run over 100.  It's not totally clear what the AQI should be based on.  We've just changed it recently.  Again, I believe that with CARB and the experts there, a lot of talk about transport between and within the air basins, Fresno is downwind.  Sacramento, you're a little more upwind but it's all the same air.  I think one of the things about the air and one of the unique parts is it's not just the water locally.  It's everywhere and we all breathe the same air, at least in the valley.



Are we trapped in a box or in a valley.  These are children's drawings of what it feels like to have asthma symptoms.  I think it's been talked about.  Dr. Santiago Wood was up here coughing, and those of us who are clearing our throats have the low-grade, as everybody talked to, Fresno cough, but shortness of breath, chest tightness, heart attacks, bronchitis, emphysema.


This is a somewhat telling slide.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  ________.


DR. PEPPER:  Oh, I've heard that referred to as the (sound), kind of clearing your throat.  It's not a technical term.  (Laughter)

SENATOR FLOREZ:  __________.


DR. PEPPER:  No.  Don't quote me on that one.  This is a somewhat telling slide.  The dark red refers to greater than 100 days of unhealthy day.  Breathing the left is ozone; the right is particulate.  You'll notice that only South Valley, the LA Basin area is as bad and basically the whole valley is represented.  This is over 100 days a year.  This is unhealthy air.  This is for all of us.  This isn't just for asthmatics and we're certainly getting worse as the years go on.


This is a map from the CHIS data, the UCLA.  The overlap here, if I was to go back one slide, you can see that in fact the darkest reds -- and I apologize that this is a little small -- but the darkest reds, again Fresno County being sort of right there in the center; Solano County being the other one that probably takes the air particulates and dirty air out of the valley, out of the Bay Area, but a number of the Central California valleys' counties are impacted here.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  _____________ stopping this flow from the Bay Area, does this slide support that or basically say that we're not Smog Check II.  We're really downwind and in a bowl?


DR. PEPPER:  The estimates are that Fresno County takes 10 to 15 percent of its smog from the Bay Area.  So whether there's Smog Check II, you've still got 4 to 7 million vehicles up there.  You've got some gross polluters.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  _______________?


DR. PEPPER:  Eighty-five percent.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

DR. PEPPER:  You know, there's a piece, I think Smog Check II can help.  They're still with the gross polluters, the unregistered cars.  I think there may be some need for smog police.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But Smog Check II, from your perspective --

DR. PEPPER:  It probably helps a little.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  -- if implemented, isn't going to clear our air, right?


DR. PEPPER:  It's not going to clear our air.  It may help but every little bit helps.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


DR. PEPPER:  I would defer to CARB experts on that.  This is more just the overlap of here in the preceding slide.


This is an interesting slide and I apologize for its busyness but it may be the most telling.  This is our data out of the hospitals which represents 12,000 visits over the course of the last four years, the dark lines, which sort of cut the slide into four, are the winter months.  Now the red is the visits.  These are actual patient visits, emergency room, and you'll note that the yellow and blue, which are the particulate matters, and the carbon monoxide, carbon dioxide, tend to follow the red.  The pink is ozone.  So in fact, and this correlates with the Kaiser data, we are not seeing as much problem from ozone.  I think there clearly is synergism and again I would refer to the CARB experts.  But whether it's the ozone that is a trigger and the particulates that are the long actor or vice-versa, they clearly both have a role to play.  All we know is we're seeing a lot more events and a lot more hospitalizations and ER visits when we see particulate spikes; and again, that would speak to some of the causes.  Diesel, wood-burning stoves, some of the farm areas certainly are issues.


Prevention is a pound of cure.  We've got some tough times in terms of budget cuts, EPA's unwillingness.  I've been involved, as has several of the later speakers with some of the lawsuits we brought to bear in terms of the EPA's dragging its feet for ten years.  Wood burning stoves, as mentioned, diesel exhaust, some of the farm and dairies and the future and just to remind us again that we all do breathe the same air.

You mentioned cost, and I have two more slides.  This is our 300,000 patients with asthma in the valley, about 10 percent.  If you figure they're about $1,000 a person, whether they're compliant, take and inhale steroids in that bag of medicine, or whether they're less compliant and do emergency revisits or hospitalizations, this is a conservative figure but _____ $300 million in the valley for asthma alone.  That's acute care.  It's not the COPD but some of the studies would say that and the speaker who follows me will address this a little more.  You may be saving as much as $10 per person, per microgram, per meters cubed ??, for reductions and ozone and again to remind you that ozone, we're typically running, 50, 80, 100, 120 so we're looking at potentially huge savings.

So when we talk about costs that the farmers may bear or that are maybe borne by truckers or they may be borne by people we need to keep in mind that we're talking about human health, I think our first three speakers looked to that.   This does not count days missed by parents, by children, or administrators who leave or, for that matter, my 16 year old who is asthmatic is looking to going to UC Santa Cruz in two years and my family is in the Bay Area and, you know, the more I delve into this, the more I question where I live and again keeping in mind why, why clean air.

Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Thank you very much.

My question is for both of you guys after your presentation.

Jodi, you want to go ahead?

MS. JODI McEDWARD:  Sure.  If I can take a moment while we're switching these devices, this room is exceptionally cold.  I don't know if you feel it.  I know I do, and then cold air is bad for asthmatics.  You've heard them coughing.  So is there any way that we can kind of turn the heat up in here a little bit because they're all taking a break right now, okay?

DR. PEPPER:  Senator Florez, I do have one other thing to add.  This is the American Lung Association and noted bibliography which I can leave for you.  It's a little bit long.  I actually made a one-page summary which has one line for each of the articles speaking.  I think the breadth of the problems and the breadth of impact.  Should I leave that…

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I'll take it.

MS. McEDWARD:   My name is Jodi McEdward.  I'm a respiratory therapist in the Central Valley.  I'm a 18-year resident of the Central Valley and I've been asked to give you comment on the other aspect of patients who suffer from air quality and those are the patients who suffer from chronic lung disease which asthma is a part, but there are also a significant number of people in the valley who suffer from other diseases that are affected seriously by air quality and I'll be providing some observations on our institution and what we see and also to give you one patient who could not come here today.  I'll give you an observation of what her life is like.

This is a reminder so that we all know what we're talking about here.  When I talk about chronic lung disease, I’m discussing obstructive disorders which consist of chronic bronchitis, emphysema, and asthma, and I don't mean just asthma that you have once or twice.  I mean you have it a long time, but there are also a whole host of patients that have another element that are called restrictive disorders and they come from a variety of factors.  Some of them are unknown at this time but we do know that poor air quality makes their life more difficult and so their situation also suffers.

Both conditions are characterized by shortness of breath with activity or even at rest, just sitting there.  Increased mucus production, increased cough, and airway narrowing.  It looks a lot like asthma because all the symptoms to poor air quality or irritation are exactly the same.

In patients that we see at our institution, and we're seeing people diagnosed in their '40s, early '40s, up till their late '80s, and I don't want to remind you that's every one of us at this point, we see these people in our emergency room.  We see them in our outpatient pulmonary rehabilitation.  We see cardiac patients also and we also take a look at pulmonary diagnostic lab.  Usually this kind of a condition co-exists with other illnesses in older or sicker patients so this isn't purely a lung issue.  Any time they have to work a little bit harder with their breathing, their heart works harder, their endocrine system works harder, their brain works harder, and they're unhappy from a physiologic standpoint.

A patient that I want to present to you this morning is representative of the over 1,000 patients that we saw in our rehab program this last year her name is Doris.  This is a real person.

She's 69 years old.  She's a lifelong adult resident of the San Joaquin Valley. She moved here from Pasadena when she was 24.  She's a widow of 12 years who lives alone on a fixed income and it's her job, her mission, to remain independent.  She's been living for 30 years with chronic, obstructive lung disease, heart disease, and arthritis.  She started out with poorly controlled asthma that progressed to multiple lung infections that left behind permanent scar tissue.  And as she's gotten older, that stresser has also advanced her heart disease.

She's a very sharp personality.  She has wanted to take good care of herself, and what I'm presenting to you is my dream and that's a patient that knows how to take care of themselves and we've worked really hard to get her to that point, and I can tell that there's a whole lot of others that don't ever get to this point but I want to share with you what her day is like.

For her to stay healthy, she takes 11 medications every day.  You saw that bag that everybody else brought up when they had asthma.  Okay.  Add six more to those and that's for her to deal with her arthritis and to deal with her heart disease and to make sure that she's got enough medicine so that she's active and functional.  She spends 15 minutes taking all of her medicines in the morning.  She takes some in the middle of the day and another 15 minutes taking her medicines in the afternoon.  But she doesn't mind doing that because she knows it's going to buy her six to eight hours of good health.

She attempts some form of mild exercise activity or participates in her personal interests as her agenda allows her because she's taken direction from us that this is what she's supposed to do.  But before she moves a muscle, before she even goes anywhere, she pops open the Fresno Bee and takes a look to see what the air quality is because that's what we've taught her to do.  Her agenda can get cancelled at a moment's notice because her outdoor plans may not be something that's suitable for her.

Now she does all of this because she's participated in a six-week rehabilitation program that her insurance company was lucky enough to pay for.  We've given her diet modifications.  She has to change the way she eats.  We've given her medication education as well as monitoring tools so that she knows when things aren't going well.  She has activity guidelines that she has to follow and she's gotten all of that from a six-week program and the ability to come back to us if she needs re-education.  I will tell you that that is not available to every patient that has chronic lung disease.

When the air gets worse, here's what Doris has to do:  If she wants to go out and do her gardening, if she wants to take a walk with her dog, if she wants to be able to go have breakfast with her friends, that's done.  She's cancelled that outdoor activity for the day.  She's not even going to go down to the local church and do her Lutheran work.  She's done.  She's going to sit at home and she's going to monitor her heart and lung condition closely.  She's going to keep an eye on things because she knows, if she gets into trouble, she's going to have to change her medication.  She knows, that if she's too far out of compliance, she's going to have to call her doctor's office.  They're very busy people as well.  When the air quality is bad, they get just as many calls from other patients who are having problems.

If her medical condition is worse enough that they want to see her, then she's going to end up going probably to the emergency room or to her doctor's office.  That's not going to be an easy thing for her to do because the average amount of time that she's going to spend getting her condition stabilized, and if she's lucky, coming back home, is anywhere from three hours to 23 hours, depending on where she goes and what the day is like for the rest of us.  That's her whole day, completely shot, if her lungs are in bad shape.  Now that's just if the air quality gets worse.

If she gets worse, she can anticipate a completely lost day due to the wait time and the illness.  I have to say that that's not just her that's going to have that lost day because she doesn't live through this by herself.  She can anticipate newer, increased medicines and increased costs.  We had some very eloquent conversation about how expensive it is to be able to take a medication that your insurance doesn't pay for.  This woman is on a fixed income; and if a medicine that she's taking doesn't work well and we want to give her something else, her out of pocket is 35 bucks per medicine.  Her annual cost out of pocket was a thousand dollars last year.  Excuse me.  It was more than that -- $2,000 last year -- as she reported it to me.

She can also anticipate new bills to pay on her fixed income and a lost day for her the family or friend who helps her, and she's very unwilling to call these people to come.  She needs transportation where she has to go.  The development in the town that she lives in, all the medical services are two miles away from her home and she has no grocery that's within walking distance.  She has to drive or someone has to take her to get there.  She lived in this town for over 20 years.  It's just growing in the opposite direction.

In 2002 she reported three exacerbations or worsenings of her condition so that she had to end up going to the emergency room to receive some kind of treatment and a lost day because of that.  In 2001, she only had one event so she has noted that it has gotten worse.  And when she thinks about the air quality and the number of days that she had to cancel her life, she said about 85 days this last year she parked inside her house and couldn't do what she needed to do.  Then, of course, there was the family member that also lost that same amount of time.

I asked her what she thought the solution to this problem would be.  We all have our own ideas.  These were her choices:  Either move from the Central Valley and away from the only support system that I have -- that’s not an acceptable thing for a woman who's in frail health at 69.  She can continue work at maintaining her "usual state of fair health."  So already, she's dealing with this mentally and not happy with the way her life is changing.  She can pray for a miracle.

Suddenly, I inserted two different pictures in this.  I showed you a rather healthy and vital-looking woman in the beginning.  This is how she sees herself on the days when she's not doing well.  She sees herself as an old woman completely withdrawn and not able to really do the things that she wants to do.  I don't know that you can put a price on the quality of life, but hers is not as good as she would like it to be and she's noticed it steadily deteriorating.

I have another patient who's a 47-year-old asthmatic.  I love his quotes so I put it up there because, when you talk about moving, this is what he said:  My doctor says I should move to the coast so I can breathe better.  This is as close to the coast as I can afford.  He can't go anyplace else and neither can this woman because she's living in a home that she's paid for, she's on a fixed income, and this is where she needs to be, and this woman is not alone.

In terms of the number of patients that we see at our institution who have either emphysema, chronic bronchitis, or have an exacerbation of their heart condition and their lungs are in bad shape, we're looking at one of those disease sessions, 78,000 patients with chronic lung disease.  That's a huge number of people and I'll tell you that that's probably an underestimated value because we know from statistics that are applied nationally that those are the only patients that come to see us.  There is probably double that out there that's symptomatic and suffering and either can't get in or doesn't know that they need to come in.  When we hold our free screenings in the spring for asthma and chronic lung disease, we catch about 150 people every time we do this and that's just the people that happen to be at the mall where we are and they walk by.

The national estimated cost of care for that particular narrowed disease state is going to be about 9.2 billion for indirect mortality.  In other words, the things that happen when you lose your quality of life and you sit at home, your family member loses the time that they have to spend, the more gas, et cetera -- 14.7 billion for direct health care needs -- those are the days that they actually show up in the hospital or the clinic or wherever and we treat them.  That's nationally.

Our programs that we see for asthma management are cardiac and/or pulmonary rehabilitation programs, and our pulmonary lab continue to see an increased volume every year.  We saw 50 to 60 patients per month last year in our pulmonary lab with a fresh diagnosis of lung disease.  To get that diagnosis, they had to have been suffering some symptoms for sometime.  This wasn't just something that they woke up one day and they had it.  They've been breathing their air and suffering their insults and other factors for at least ten years.

Our rehabilitation volume this last year was about a thousand patients and those are the ones that are lucky enough to see us.  When we have poor air quality days, we want to our patients to stay active but they know that they can't go outside.  Now if they're fortunate, they're going to be able to drive themselves to the mall.  If they're even more fortunate, they've got the ability to pay out of pocket for a rehab program and there is no government insurance program that will pay for a patient to go and have exercise, so those patients actually suffer a form of discrimination by virtue of the type of insurance they have.

In summary, I want you to put yourself in her shoes.  If this was your life in our current air quality, you can expect it to randomly cancel approximately one-third of your daily activities; your calendar is just out for 100 days due to the air quality index.  If you follow my direction and you do what I ask you to do to take good care of yourself, you will experience random but consistently increasing cost of care out of your income.  And if you're lucky, your income is going to stay appropriate with inflation but probably not.

You can experience a gradual but yearly decline in the freedom to enjoy your hobbies and activities, so you'll give it up a little bit at a time every year.  And after a couple of years, you'll really notice it.  But most importantly, you're going to run the risk of increased and new health concerns.  Those other problems that you have, they're going to continue to be stressed and they're going to continue to deteriorate that go along with long-term and deteriorating heart or lung disease.

This is what she says about living in this town:  It's a nice place to live but I wouldn’t want to breathe here."

But she's dedicated in staying here because this is where her family is.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you. 

Just two questions for both of you.

Jodi, first, you mentioned a government program to exercise.  Explain that a little more.

MS. McEDWARD:  Well, under the current reimbursement program for pulmonary rehabilitation, Medicare will pay a small amount for the patient to actually go through the program.  But once they finish the program and we have given them their quality-of-life assessment, there is no reimbursement for them to come and do a maintenance program.  Our therapists get very creative. 

If they're lucky enough to go to the mall, they can walk _____.  They've got a very nice track in there.  We'll design a home exercise program for them so they can maintain a level of activity.  But we are by nature social animals, and the habits that you adopt for healthy behavior need to be reinforced and we have tons of national data that proves that we need to keep them going.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So what you're saying is that it's kind of like you're giving them a map and saying:  Good luck.  But if you get lost, don't call us.

MS. McEDWARD:  You bet.  I'm saying I'm helping you get better and may be the force be with you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The other question I have for both of you is that I think in each of the presentations, particularly Dr. Pepper had a chart that showed ozone levels and visits, et cetera, tied to certain aspects.

What happens when it's a severe day?

MS. McEDWARD:  You mean in terms of physiologic response?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No.  Both of you, I think you mentioned, Jodi, you get many calls and that's if the doctor can take it because you're getting a lot of calls.

Is there a need or have you guys discussed some sort of center where everyone can get their call answered or is this just something that they go to their doctor on and they can only call their doctor.  And if they don’t, they're doctor's busy; they have no answers at all?  I mean given the air issues that both of you have mentioned, I mean is there some sort of discussions within the medical community, the respiratory therapist community, and others where there is a place where people can literally call and make sure someone answers the phone and even though it may not be their doctor -- or does it have to be their doctor?

How does that work?

MS. McEDWARD:  I can answer my portion first.  You know, we never want to interrupt the relationship between the physician and their patient.  That's very important that they maintain that.  So if we have, and if you'll forgive the term, secured lives, but it means, if we have a group of patients that we're caring for, our hospital will design a program and offer it to all of the physicians and to the patients to let them know that that's there and that they can contact us.  But often, their conditions are somewhat fragile and they don't just have one thing wrong with them.  This isn't just chronic bronchitis.  This is chronic bronchitis and maybe coronary artery disease with a prior heart attack, diabetes, hypertension.  You definitely want your physician involved in that.

On bad air quality days, her definition of a poor day is going to be a little different than somebody else's.  She doesn't go out when the air temperature is less than 40 or greater than 90, so she's going to call a little more frequently than somebody else.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And just one more.

MS. McEDWARD:  So that's just our response.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, go ahead, Doctor.

DR. PEPPER:  Well, to speak to the first one, and Kevin Hamilton who's on your program later is my ?? day-to-day manager.  Kevin is also a respiratory therapist and runs the Asthma Educational Program.  In part, we have a little bit easier patients to deal with because they have a little more isolated problems, although we also deal with COPD.  There are no region-wide, statewide, nation-wide, sort of phone lines, although we're dealing with Blue Cross to try to set things up because there are some standard protocols, NIH guidelines, that clearly could be adopted.  Even in the best of care, we know that physicians don't follow them all.  But the reimbursement for asthma education -- we even talk about Blue Cross -- is very little.  Education in general, which is preventive, kind of proactive, is not valued.  We know that these people are very expensive.  They do go to the emergency room and I think we've done a very proactive approach of linking patients up with the providers.  We do have an Asthma Education Line that's answered.  We try to get them either to the provider and to do some triage.  Patients want to talk to somebody they connect with and it's great for Jodi to say that she wants them to connect to their doctor.  But on a bad day…

MS. McEDWARD:  It's not going to happen.

DR. PEPPER:  Well, we know that -- it's not just that day.  It's probably that week they're going to have problems.  Quite frankly, I get paid nothing for dealing with it, with a patient.  I’m not a lawyer.  If I'm a lawyer, I'll bill you by the minute but I'm a doctor.  I get oftentimes paid $11 per member, per month.  It's easier for me to tell you to go to the emergency room.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Given that, the discussion of an Asthma Education Line, is that feasible, something that we could, might want to implement, in particularly Fresno…

MS. McEDWARD:  I think any time you have education and the opportunity out there that creates awareness, it's a positive thing.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I'd like to have some more discussions with both of at some point about the protocols for something like that because obviously we're looking to clean the air but we also need some…

DR. PEPPER:  My academic area is actually in protocols and one of the positives that not only is coming out of this side of the set of hearings and the Crippen fire but the Fresno Bee, articles which I did participate in, is we really do need not only a regional approach but a valley wide approach and I commend you on that because it is always the valley air.  I think it's great that we have a number of our colleagues here from the state, from the state health organizations.  We have our _________.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We do.  Thank you both very much.

DR. PEPPER:  Thank you.

MS. McEDWARD:  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Appreciate it.
Okay.  Let's go on.  This panel will run from 11:40 to noon.  If we get done earlier, great.


This is Local Health Agencies' Perspective.  We have Dr. Kenneth Bird, Interim Health Officer, Fresno County; and Michael MacLean, Health Officer, Tulare and Kings County.

Thank you both for coming.  You heard from families, you've heard from our school officials, and now you've heard from a few doctors and respiratory folks.  I guess what I'm interested in is, just what's the cost of treating people in your areas that suffer from air-related industry illnesses?  Either of you can start first but I'd like you to give me your impressions.

DR. MICHAEL MacLEAN:  I'm not sure that either one of us could address that.  It certainly is an important question and perhaps I can respond by giving you a little better idea of local jurisdiction than any chronic disease.

Local jurisdictions, we're very interested in people, the mortality and morbidity associated with chronic disease, asthma being one of them.  We're really at sort of the tail end of a long series of less and less funding for local health departments.  It is not one of the mandates that public health has traditionally had.  We don't have any specific mandate that we have to produce programs or whatever around chronic disease, whereas we do under acute disease.  We clearly have a responsibility to control epidemics, et cetera.  So it is a stepchild of public health in the sense that we get some data from the state for a number of chronic diseases but it is not, for the most part, they are not reportable diseases and we receive no specific funding to develop programs around it.

DR. KENNETH BIRD:  Senator, I have to probably defer to my 
Director of Health down in Fresno for specific answers to your question as far as how much this is costing us.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me just ask you a simple question.  How much more support -- you mentioned the stepchild of being beyond an epidemic, acute, chronic illness.  You heard the parents earlier saying -- and I think most people would agree -- that when an asthma attack occurs, that is absolutely acute in many cases and it is an emergency and how do you, as health folks, deal with that?  I mean are you involved in that loop or this something that happens between a personal physician and some people are on fixed incomes.  There's some people who, believe it or not, may not, as has been mentioned, know they even have asthma in many cases until they kind of figure it out.  Does that happen…

DR. BIRD ??:  Again, a lot of that does have to go through their personal physician in that relationship they have.  Traditionally, as I know it, the Health Department doesn't play a big role in that relationship right there.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Do you do any sort of, like, if somebody walks in with a bad cough, somebody kind of figures it might be asthma, then what do you do?

DR. BIRD:  When those questions do come to us, we do have them make the referral to their provider.  If they don’t have a provider, we have people available that will give them other resources, other ideas.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  If they don't have a provider, let's just use that.  I'm sure there's people who don’t have providers.

DR. MacLEAN:  This issue is addressed very widely.  A lot of variance, depending on which county you're talking about.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How about in that city?

DR. MacLEAN:  That's basically looking at it from the standpoint that indigent healthcare is a responsibility of the counties, and so counties do have a responsibility under the MIA program to develop, to provide for medically indigent adults.  That is sometimes housed in the health department, in the public health department, if you will.  It is something that frequently is associated with public medicine, but public health itself is something that's different.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Maybe I'm not phrasing this right.

Kimberly, let me ask you a question and the audience.

Do you have insurance?

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes.  Medi-Cal.

SENATOR FLORES:  Medi-Cal.  Okay.

Now is there something that the county have ever done for you in terms of the public health officers or anything of that sort?

MS. WILLIAMS:  No.  I always had to go through the pediatrician.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  To his pediatrician.

MS. WILLIAMS:  Like Jodi was saying, when he gets sick, I have to call his pediatrician -- it's Dr. Shee ?? -- _______, nine times out of ten she'll say he needs to go to emergency room.  But before any person can get to Medi-Cal, they have to be evaluated from the county first.  That is the only way an indigent person can get Medi-Cal.  You have to literally come in on death's door.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Stop right there.

So Kimberly walks in and then what do you guys do?

DR. BIRD:  There is a significant amount of our budget in the Fresno County Health Department that goes through our University Medical Center who is supposed to be taking care of these acute and even chronic conditions with the people that cannot pay, the indigent that don't have the funds.  They're not even eligible for Medi-Cal.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Still, I'm confused.  What is it that you guys do?

DR. BIRD:  As far as air pollution?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What is it that you guys do in the very dirty, bad air region?  What is it that you guys do?  What is it that you're adding?  What value are you providing?  What can you say if somehow the governor didn't want to give you the VLF money and you, the counties and the cities, came up to the state and said we really need our money and we said, well, what do you do then?  What are you doing for asthmatic kids?  What is it?  That's my question to you.

Make the case because that's a real time issue.
DR. BIRD:  What we will need to do probably, as I see it, is to partner more with the people we've seen, you've heard from already -- the school district, the private hospitals, the Air Board itself.  I think the fire in Fresno is probably a good representation of how the communication was lacking a little bit between our County Health Department and the Air Board.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Now everything you just told me said what we should do.  Are you doing it and why not?

I'm going to put you on the hot seat, but we're here to ask the tough questions and can't really put us on the hot seat and say we weren't doing anything and she's right.  So I want to know -- let me just get it right, okay?

The governor's going to veto the VLF.  You, the counties and the cities -- or the cities aren't here -- are going to come to us and say, boy, we're really going to lose all these services.  I'm wondering, you're the health folks and I’m going to you guys.  Then what are you doing to help people in bad air regions, and particularly indigent people who may not have insurance whom Medi-Cal isn't paying enough and you might catch people who don't know they have asthma. 

This is a serious question.  I mean what is it that you provide?  What value are you providing in this battle?  You've mentioned, well, we could talk to EPA; we could talk to; we coulda, woulda, and you know the rest, shoulda.  Are you doing it at all?

DR. BIRD:  As you're accurately pointing out, we have very little resources we're putting into that right now.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let's talk about Crippen fire then.  That's a big issue; that's a big public health issue.  Huge, right?

DR. BIRD:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You agree?  Okay.  Are you guys actively engaged in that?

DR. BIRD:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is that the only time that you guys have been actively engaged in air issues from your memory?

DR. BIRD:  Well, my memory only as interim health officer only goes back to the 6th of January of this year.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Where were you before that?

DR. BIRD:  I was a general medical service medical director of Fresno County.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But you lived in Fresno County, right?

DR. BIRD:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask any of you.  We had a witness earlier come up in almost tears and tell us, all of them actually, that this fire is going on.  Kimberly was at a meeting I was at.  I think she remembers I asked them very tough questions as well, people there, and I guess my issue is, if you all read the Fresno Bee deal -- I mean I'm sure somebody said, had a meeting, hopefully and said what can we do to participate in this clean air movement, if you will, since we are public health officers because maybe one day we'll have to come to Sacramento and some senator will ask us irately, what is it you were doing and then you're going to have to answer so now is that day.

DR. BIRD:  I think is a great forum for us to carry the answers back with us.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But I'm asking for an answer from you guys.  What is it that you are providing a value in this fight to clean our air, given you're public health officials?  If Kimberly walks in our door with no insurance and saying Medi-Cal isn't doing enough, she needs to buy -- or there's somebody who walks in that doesn't know they have asthma and you hear, as has been mentioned, the Fresno cough and you kind of think they might have asthma, what is it that you are doing?  What is it you're providing?  What value are you adding in this war against dirty air?  I don't have an answer for you.  That's my question.

DR. BIRD:  I think part of our being here is to find out an answer together with you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So you don't have answers?

DR. BIRD:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That's fine.

DR. MacLEAN:  Tulare County is…

MR. KEVIN HAMILTON:  If I can speak to answer…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who are you first?

MR. HAMILTON:  Kevin Hamilton.  I run the Asthma Program…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Kevin, are you coming up later?

MR. HAMILTON:  Yes, but in a different capacity.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Hold on.  Hold it because we'll get to you.  Hold your answer, okay?  We'll get to you.

MR. HAMILTON:  Yes.  But he's under attack and he can't defend himself for a very good reason.  Fresno County hasn't had a public health officer.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Kevin, come on up.  You just volunteered yourself for the hot seat.  Come on up here then.  Okay.

DR. BIRD:  ___________.

MR. HAMILTON:  You're welcome, Ken, not a problem because I'm tired of hearing you being abused and in fact you're stepping forward in a capacity you didn't have to do here and I appreciate the fact that you're doing that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can you state you name for the record?

MR. HAMILTON:  Kevin Hamilton.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.   Let me ask you the question.  What are county health officials doing to participate in this?

MR. HAMILTON:  Because there's been no leadership at the county from a county health officer, unfortunately, for the last few years, other than a coroner who's volunteered in that position and not been active, we've had very little leadership.  The public health nurses of which there are 37 working in the county have worked very closely with us at the Asthma Program Community Medical Center.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That's what I want to hear.  Tell me what they do.

MR. HAMILTON:  We are actually running out of the medically indigent services primary care clinics, which is my program, which is where we're located, so that we can capture these medically indigent folks.  It doesn't mean that they're poverty stricken, you understand.  It means that they don't have medical insurance, for whatever reason.  Many, of course, are poverty stricken but some fall into other categories.

Those folks and us have partnered together over the last four years.  And when they go and do home visits or people show up at the public health clinic downtown, in downtown Fresno, they actually call my office and let me know, let my folks know, we've got a person and they send us a referral.  Then we will contact that individual, get them into our program.

I have people carrying pagers seven days a week; so if that person gets in trouble because of something like the Crippen fire, and our pagers have been going off like crazy, they call us on the phone, they call my people on their pagers, and my people are dedicated.  They're not getting paid for this extra work.  They call these folks back very quickly, as soon as they're finished with the patient they're seeing, and discuss with them what might be the issue.  If it seems appropriate, get them into emergency medical care.  If not, primary care.  Just answer the question and hold their hands for a few minutes.  These are the kinds of things that are happening so there is something happening.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Well, that's what I wanted to know.

MR. HAMILTON:  …paid for is the problem and it's going under because we have no funding.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let's stop there.  That's what you're here for.  Let me ask you the question.

MR. HAMILTON:  Sorry to get so excited.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No. Actually, it's good because I think that's what we want to do.  The governor's going to in essence veto the Vehicle License Fee.  I just had a press conference before this.  The county is going to come to us and say this is a disaster for us.

Do you believe, that if that cut occurs,  I mean the governor vetoes this bill and those cuts do occur in local government, have you heard that somehow your program or the things that the county health officials are providing are going to be cut or is this just law enforcement?  We're talking about air today.

So I'm just wondering, from your perspective only -- I know you can't speak for your CAO and everyone else, the county, whatnot.  What happens?  Is that a real concern or not?  I mean is it going to get to you or not?

MR. HAMILTON:  It's a concern for us and I don't know that I would tie it directly to the vehicle fees issue.  I don't know enough about that issue to comment on what impact the loss of…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let's just say you don't get money, period.

MR. HAMILTON:  Let's just say we don't get money.  It's a healthcare disaster for our community which in turn will weaken the overall state's economy as those people roll into the emergency rooms and are also disabled from the workforce because many of them, as you well know, don't have health insurance because their jobs don't provide them.  They're making $20,000, $30,000 a year with no health insurance.  They will be disabled from the workforce.  You'll lose taxpayers.  It's a vicious cycle.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I've got you.  Let me ask you a question then.

You mentioned 36 folks, nurses…

MR. HAMILTON:  About 36 health nurses that are public health nurses that work for Ken.  He hasn't been in office to really even know --

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Welcome to the legislature.

MR. HAMILTON:  -- everything.  Yes, exactly.  He will.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, even given that, Kevin, 36 folks, again, tell me how, same question.  What value are they adding?  You mentioned what they do but what value are they adding to this fight to clean air or respond at this point?  Obviously they're not cleaning the air; they're responding.

What are they providing so this committee understands exactly what's going on?

MR. HAMILTON:  Absolutely.  They actually take referral walk-ins, people who actually come in, or are referred to them by emergency rooms, physicians' groups, public advocacy groups, or who just call them for information.  They literally go to these people's homes to do home inspections for these folks, get them hooked into the various service agencies that they may need medically and socially to support them but they don't actively participate.  In fact, they don't have time.  But can you imagine 35 people to serve 700-and-some-odd-thousand for one county?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who pays them?

MR. HAMILTON:  This the county.  These are all county employees.  The County of Fresno pays them.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The County of Fresno.

MR. HAMILTON:  And that's their job and they see that their kids have immunizations.  The list goes on, physicals and they get in school.  I mean all of these tasks…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Ken mentioned the ability to link or have future discussions with EPA.  The Crippen fire obviously has probably brought a whole new perspective to coordination at the Health Department; is that fair to say?

DR. BIRD:  It certainly has.


MR. HAMILTON:  That's correct.  And we will be looking at that.  I've already made an arrangement with a major insurer that provides Medicaid support for our area, to do a retrospective analysis of claims status so we can truly give you a picture of what this kind of event does.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, let me just say for the record, if anybody's interested, we will be going in a couple of weeks to Fresno to have a hearing simply on the Crippen fire and I think it is an excellent case study on what we needed to do and what we aren't doing, and why the city allowed this, in my belief, to happen, period.  It's just my thought.  I want to have you both there.  Hopefully we can get you back and we'll about the impacts of that, what we learn from it.  Let me end there and tell you guys both thank you for coming.


I think we'll see you in a minute, Kevin, in a different capacity.


MR. HAMILTON:  Thank you for allowing me to interject.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You've got it.

We're still on schedule, folks.  It's noon.  We're going to have the states come up from noon till 12:20.  We have Bart Crose ??, Air Resources Board.  Oh, I'm sorry.  Okay.  We have Kurt Carperos, Manager of Resources Board; Dr. Michael Lipsett, M.D., from OEHHA, Oakland; Julie Von Behren, Department of Health Services, Asthmatic Hospital Tracking System; and Helene Margolis, EPA, Cal-EPA, Assistant Director for Children's Environmental Health Study Center, Senior Investigator, Fresno Asthmatic Children's Environment Study.


Thank you all for joining us.  I appreciate it.


I've given you a little bit of where we're trying to be at.  In terms of time, I'd appreciate it if you would participate with our schedule and I do want to thank you all for coming.  Thank you for coming all the way to Sacramento.  We very much appreciate it.


We'll start with Mr. Crose, if we could.  I'm sorry.  Mr. Karperos, the Manager of Air Resources Board, your perspectives, in terms of how you track air-pollution-related illnesses in the state.  Five minutes for each and then I'll have some questions.


MR. KURT KARPEROS:  Certainly.  Senator, one of my current duties at the Air Resources Board is to coordinate with San Joaquin Valley Air Quality Officials and USCPA on strategies to clean the air and part of that is our tracking of what's going on, where we've been, and where we think we might be going, and I'll try to provide that quantitative backdrop to your discussions that you can carry forward and through all your committee's work.


I'm going to refer today to clean air.  And when I do that, I'm measuring against a health-based standard set by the California Air Resources Board.  Now the USEPA also sets standards.  Generally the state's standards, California's standards, are more health protected than their federal counterpart and we believe they're a better definition and a truer definition of true healthy air and that's what we need to be working for.


Now the San Joaquin Valley in particular, unfortunately, the valley has the perfect geography and the perfect weather for making pollution.  If Los Angeles, which has always been our benchmark for dirty air is a bowl, perfect for cooking up a pollution mixture, San Joaquin Valley is a test tube that's perfect in its own way.  If you look at a map, you can see it.  It's long and narrow.  It's hemmed in on the sides and the bottom by mountains.  If you combine that with the weather, then you can reach pollution levels that rival those in Los Angeles, in a region with one quarter of the population.


The sources of pollution in the valley are ubiquitous -- they're within the cities, they're outside of the cities.  As a result, we see high smog levels throughout the valley.  It's not just a city problem.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can I interrupt?  Just throughout the valley means, give me the region.  Sacramento to…


MR. KARPEROS:  I'm talking Stockton…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Stockton?


MR. KARPEROS:  Stockton, all the way down to Bakersfield.


On a typical smoggy day, air starts to flow in from the north part of the valley; it collects pollution in that region; it combines with pollution further downwind.  You start to see unhealthy levels, hemmed in by mountains, I k now, on all sides; it's got nowhere to go until it builds up and pushes out into the Sierras and out over the high desert.  My first chart here is speaking to ozone.  This is, over the last decade, the number of unhealthy days caused by elevated smog levels of ozone.  You can see that essentially residents in the valley are breathing polluted air from ozone a third of the time.


Dr. Pepper also spoke to particulate pollution and suggested that might be an even greater problem.  The valley's particular pollution has three basic constituents.  The first is dust, the second is soot and smoke that comes from wood and vegetative burning directly from exhaust, and finally, our third component are particles that are formed in the air from polluting gas.  And the primary component of the latter is something called ammonia nitrate and that's formed by the combination of oxides of nitrogen which comes out of tailpipes, engines, exhaust, and the like when that combines with ammonia in the air.


The particular pollution in the valley is a fall/winter phenomenon as opposed to the ozone up here which I was talking about all summer long, people are breathing dirty air.  I will page down quickly here and that is a major of the number of polluted days, the number of days residents in the valley are breathing unhealthy air as a result of particulate pollution.  There's a lot of variability year to year, pay ?? wetter year, less dust.  A storm year to year, less stagnant conditions in the winter, and you don’t get as much particulate formation.  But half the year, people from this chart, about half the year, people are breathing dirty air due to particulate pollution.  A couple of years ago, it was up to two-thirds.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Give me some laymen's sources for those particulate pollutions.  What causes it?


MR. KARPEROS:  Dust originates from dirt, originates from tire wear on our roads; cars go by, kick it up in the air.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Dust?


MR. KARPEROS:  Pure dust.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. KARPEROS:  A layman's term, dust.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How about feedlots?


MR. KARPEROS:  Feedlots, certainly.  As you're mixing up anything that fractures and you can get dust off very fine dust so that's the dust part, but PM has three constituents.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  What are those?


MR. KARPEROS:  As I said, the first is dust.  The second is smoke and soot; you can see that from wood burning, vehicle exhaust, combustion essentially, engine's exhaust.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  "Vehicle," does that not mean sources, what I call stationary sources, irrigation pumps, these things?  Is that what you're talking about?


MR. KARPEROS:  It's a natural byproduct of any combustion process.  So wherever you have a combustion process, whether it be in a car, whether it be on a stationary engine bolted…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So any sort of engine…


MR. KARPEROS:  A diesel engine, someplace bolted to a platform.  Your water heater, the little burner down there, produces NOx, so any combustion source.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  These are like newspaper organizations that run newspapers every day; those machines are going, and they're adding stuff to the -- right, anything.


MR. KARPEROS:  It's a natural byproduct of human existence.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do we have an idea of what causes the most?


MR. KARPEROS:  It varies in the year…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  There's a big debate in the valley.  I mean our agriculture folks say we're not causing it, very small amounts.  The dairy folks saying we cause small amounts.  This is our struggle on this committee, who does what.


What's the worst offenders?  You're the Air Board, right?


MR. KARPEROS:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So what is it?


MR. KARPEROS:  When you look at our mission inventories, which is our catalog and where the pollution is coming from…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  This is the big pie then?


MR. KARPEROS:  The big pie.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. KARPEROS:  The sources range anywhere from cars, diesel trucks, agricultural pumps.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  What's the biggest piece?


MR. KARPEROS:  For…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Particulates.


MR. KARPEROS:  For particulate pollution?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. KARPEROS:  In the fall, the biggest piece is dust.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Dust.  Okay.


MR. KARPEROS:  So any activity that stirs up dust eventually gets it on the road and cars can re-entrain that and carry it along with them, so that's the fall.


In the winter, the bigger constituent is what I referred to earlier is ammonia nitrate and that comes from both nitrogen and ammonia, and the sources of oxides of nitrogen are what I was referring to earlier, engine combustion.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Engine combustion.  Okay.  You didn't mention the word "dairies" there.  Is that not an issue?


MR. KARPEROS:  Dairies are the…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Somebody came up and said that dairies was an issue.  I just wondered if, you're the Air Board so…


MR. KARPEROS:  Dairies, when we're looking at ozone, dairies in the summer emit large quantities of what we call reactive organic gases.  They're one of the constituents of ozone, one of the primary ingredients to ozone, and they represent one of the largest categories within the valley of those emissions in the summer.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. KARPEROS:  They also emit a great deal of ammonia and it's that ammonia that reacts with the oxides of nitrogen that produces the ammonia nitrate particle in the winter.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Winter.  Okay.  Go ahead.  I’m sorry.


MR. KARPEROS:  Actually, I was trying to move quickly through your five minutes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, that's free.  Let me ask one quick question and then we'll go onto the other folks.


The relationship to the health officers who just came up, do you have a relationship with them, the county health officers, you working with them?  You're the Air Board.


MR. KARPEROS:  Our primary interface is with the local air district.  We have a statutory responsibility to oversee their work and we work in tandem with them to produce strategies for cleaning the air.  We would seek their role to interface with the local health officer.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can you just give me a perspective on what the federal government thinks of the Central Valley?


MR. KARPEROS:  The Central Valley is in sharp focus right now for USDA.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just tell me what you think they think of us.  Sharp focus, I get that.  We're under a microscope but what does that mean?  From your perspective, you're the Air Board.  What is it that the federal government thinks of the Central Valley?


MR. KARPEROS:  If they were here before you today, I believe they'd be saying that the Central Valley needs to work much harder to produce clean air.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And if we don't, what would they be telling us?  If we told them to go pound sand, what would they be telling us?


MR. KARPEROS:  They would be telling us that they have a federal mandate to produce the clean-air strategies if we do not and come in and act in our place.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Act in our place?  Okay.  So in other words, they would -- what does that mean, "act in our place?"  What does that mean?


MR. KARPEROS:  They would establish the control strategies for the sort of sources I've been describing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So that means we would get to eliminate the Air Board from the budget and save money and they would just take over?  Do they come in and just take over?  I mean it's a very serious question.  They come in and say, hey, we're in charge?


MR. KARPEROS:  They, in the early '90s, in 1994, USEPA was required to act in that fashion as I was describing and they produced a strategy that California felt was economically enviable ?? for the region and we stepped forward and produced what we felt was a much more effective and a much more economically viable strategy and that's what we need to do in this case.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And that was a region you were fighting with the federal government on or is that just the whole state?  When you said that you came up with a better alternative…


MR. KARPEROS:  There were six regions that were at issue in early '94, and one of them being the San Joaquin Valley.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  San Joaquin Valley.  And you came up with a better plan and the feds said fine?


MR. KARPEROS:  Yes.  They accepted our plan and we implemented it in place.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So why are they still mad at us then?  Why are they upset with the Central Valley?


MR. KARPEROS:  Because, as your witnesses testified earlier, and I presented in my charts, we continue to grossly exceed the health…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So we're not living up to our deal; is that right?


MR. KARPEROS:  I think both the local air district and ourselves, the Air Board, implemented the strategies that we designed based on the science at the time and what we have learned over the course of the implementation of that plan is that there are additional sources that we didn't understand and hadn't quantified previously and therefore had not addressed.  We've learned a great deal more about how ozone and PMs are formed in the valley and we didn't have the benefit of that knowledge ten years ago.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So that was 1994?


MR. KARPEROS:  Right.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. ROB OGLESBY:  Rob Oglesby representing the…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Hi, Robert, and thank you for your help, in helping us put all this together.


MR. OGLESBY:  If I could, just add a couple of elements.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.


MR. OGLESBY:  First, your original question is what happens and how does the federal government view us.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. OGLESBY:  One of the first things we'll feel, and the clock is ticking already, is the loss of federal transportation funds.  So before they go to the, occupy the field and take over the program, there are a couple of sanctions that are written into the Clean Air Act and one of them is loss of transportation funds.  The other is an imposition on all the industries and employers in the valley of 2:1 industry offsets so that an industry, in order to expand economic activities, has to pay twice the emission reductions that they would need otherwise.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Rob, is there a cost?  I mean is there a number on that?  Roughly, do we estimate how much millions of dollars more businesses would have to pay if we didn't do that?


MR. OGLESBY:  There may have been.  I don't know the number off the top of my head.  Obviously those offsets are extremely expensive, as you know, from your experience in the power arena.


Let me also say one other thing of what's happened since our state implementation plan.


One of the things that's happened over the course of the last several years, there's been a number of lawsuits and those have required, have led to the federal government imposing a few demands on the state to satisfy those lawsuits, one of which is Title V.  Title V is an exemption of agricultural sources from Title V permits.  There were some legal actions.  The federal government now is saying that California statute that provides an exemption is not _____ and that has to be accommodated in state law and there have been a number of other things.

So in short, one of the things that's happened over the past several years is, A, failure to progress adequately to meet deadlines under the Clean Air Act for clean air, number one.  Number two, some legal actions that have triggered some further activities by the federal government.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Rob, thank you.  I'm going to move onto the next folks.  I will say that our next hearing is in Fresno.  We will be talking about the penalties for missing those deadlines.  I believe we're going to be in Fresno in two or three weeks.  So, Rob, we'll probably have more discussions, more serious discussions, about those deadlines -- how real are they; do the federal government keep changing those on us; or are we really trying to act in good faith or not?  So I'll just leave it for that hearing but I want to thank you guys, okay?

And, Kurt, thank you as well, very much appreciate it.

Dr. Michael Lipsett.

DR. MICHAEL LIPSETT:  Thank you very much for holding this hearing, Senator Florez.  I was under the impression that I would have about 20 minutes but I'm going to leave out…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can you do it in two or three?  (Laughter)

DR. LIPSETT:  I can maybe make it five.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Go ahead.  Do your best.

DR. LIPSETT:  First, I just wanted to give a little bit of background.  I'm from the Office of Health Hazard Assessment.  We are a small department within the Cal-EPA, and part of our statutory responsibilities is to develop the health basis to recommend to the ARB and ARB promulgates the ambient standards based on our recommendations.

Now one of the things that I wanted to discuss briefly here with this whole area of cardiovascular effects of particulate air pollution, we've heard a lot about asthma and asthma is clearly a very serious problem with respect to air pollution in the Central Valley, but there's a whole other dimension that hasn't been covered and I'd like to focus principally on what we know about that.  We've just completed a revision of the California's particle standards.  And one of the things that we discovered or that we found was that looking at particles, and I've abbreviated PM for particulate matter and the ten cents for ten microns or less, looking at particles of mortality, in more than 200 cities, there have been studies that have examined relationships between daily changes in particle levels and daily mortality and they've been remarkably consistent.  These have been studies on five continents and cities all over the world and basically find more or less the same kind of relationship of about a *1 percent increase in total mortality per ten micrograms per cubic meter of particulates, and much of this focuses on cardiovascular mortality.  There is a lot of skepticism about this when these findings came out initially.  But if this is a real causal kind of relationship, you'd expect to see similar kinds of effects on less serious outcomes -- I mean hospitalizations, ER visits, school absenteeism -- and these are findings that have been demonstrated consistently also in cities throughout the world.  Most of the studies have looked at mortality but all these things that are listed on the slide in the hard copy that you have, have been demonstrated as well in relation to changes in daily particles.

I wanted to just mention a couple of these studies.  One was done by investigators at Harvard looking in particular at heart attacks and finding the changes in particles, and the hours preceding the heart attack were strongly related with the dose of the particles in the ambient air.  Similarly, with changes in something called heart rate variability, which is a measure of the heart's ability to respond to stress, particles have also been associated with a decreased ability of the heart to respond to stresses for the people who are already compromised may therefore suffer arrhythmias which is something that's also been demonstrated by a study that was done at Harvard as well.

I guess I'm going to speak very, very briefly about ozone as well but particles, I think, overall are a very serious problem throughout the Central Valley.  One can expect to find probably substantially increased mortality is a result of particle pollution.  We actually did a calculation for this hearing; and looking at number six of the counties within the Central Valley, in comparing the current levels with what we propose is the new standard, we estimated there would be about 900 excess deaths a year, primarily cardiovascular in nature as a result of the differences between the current particle levels and what the new standard is going to be in California.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Doctor Lipsett, can you explain that, just that last point, one more time?  The purpose of that particular calculation is to tell us what?

DR. LIPSETT:  Well, basically -- here, it was my last slide.  We wanted to just get a sense of what the potential public health impact would be if not meeting the new standards.  This is just kind of the tip of the iceberg because we're not calculating excess hospitalizations, asthma attacks.  This is just overall mortality as a result of not meeting the new ambient standards.

Okay.  There was one other thing I wanted to mention -- I think I have about 30 seconds.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Go ahead.  Go to the pertinent slides.  That's fine.

DR. LIPSETT:  There was a study that was reported about a year ago from USC.  It's a study funded by the Air Resources Board called the Children's Health Study.  It's the largest ongoing cohort study of children in looking at their health and relation to air pollution anywhere in the world.

What they found in that was that particularly for athletic children who participated in three or more outdoor team sports, over a four-year period, this increased the risk of developing new asthma in this whole group of about 3,500 kids by about 80 percent.  But in the high ozone communities, they had more than tripling of the risk for these athletic children.

Now this is the first convincing demonstration that ozone levels are actually related not to exacerbation of existing cases.  We already know that from dozens of studies that have been done but to actually developing new cases of asthma related to air pollution.  This is, like I said, the first convincing scientific demonstration of this.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Dr. Lipsett, so what you're telling lay folks is, that if you -- Ms. Hinojoza talked earlier about children getting asthma and her getting asthma.  Is that to say, that if you're playing sports, if you're living in the valley at this point in time, you're in 7th grade now going to be going through 8th and 9th and you don't have asthma, are you going to get asthma?

DR. LIPSETT:  It's not a deterministic thing but there is an increased risk of developing it.

One thing that happens, say, when you do aerobic sports, especially children, you can increase your breathing rates by about 17 fold.  So clearly, you're going to be getting a lot more of this stuff down into the lungs, a lot more exposure.  Ozone is a very strong irritant of the lungs.  It causes inflammation, and inflammation is kind of the basic pathology of what's going on with asthma.  So it will increase the risk.  You can't predict for any given individual whether they're going to get it or not.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So what is this slide telling me then, given what I just asked you?

DR. LIPSETT:  Well, what this slide says is that, in areas that do tend to have higher levels of ozone, it's not healthy to be out exercising.  I mean it's kind of a duh sort of thing but this is, like I said, the first good scientific study demonstrating this.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.

DR. LIPSETT:  I think I've used up my time.  If you or your staff have any questions about the hard copy, I'd be happy to answer them at any other time.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I appreciate that.  Just one more question to you.  In terms of the assistance, the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, how do you interact with the Central Valley or do you interact with the Central Valley in terms of our air quality?

DR. LIPSETT:  Okay.  I personally get phone calls from county health officers as well as from air districts because this is my area of expertise.  When the tire fire happened at Westley, I worked very closely with the health officer there at that time, Elroy ?? Garza, to tend to the community meeting down there which I don't know if you were there or not.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  My seatmate, that was Dennis Cardoza's district so I can live through that fire, and here we have a similar situation in which I think we're acting the same way.  We're separating the piles, waiting for it to burn out a week later.

Has anyone from the county called you in terms of our fire, Crippen fire at all?

DR. LIPSETT:  Well, actually one of my colleagues, Dr. Bob Blasedale ??, did go down with a number of other people from Cal-EPA and the ARB and worked closely with County Health at the time.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

DR. LIPSETT:  So in these kinds of emergency episodes that occurs, and like with forest fires, I get calls as well.  We've actually drafted a guide for public health officials on how to deal with wildfire smoke which was made available also for this Crippen fire to the public health authority.

In addition, specifically for Fresno, one of my colleagues, Dr. Janice Kim, and I we got some federal money from Region 9 which we're using to develop with the local lung association an asthma and air pollution summit in April in Fresno, and so this is grant money that we obtained from USEPA that we're passing through to the locals because we recognize that this is a major problem there.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.

DR. LIPSETT:  You're welcome.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We have July Von Behren.

MS. JULY VON BEHREN:  July Von Behren.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  July.  Okay.  And you're with the Department of Health Services?

MS. VON BEHREN:  Yes.  I'm a research scientist with the environmental health investigations branch.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you're based…

MS. VON BEHREN:  In Oakland.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  In Oakland.  Okay.

MS. VON BEHREN:  As a branch of the California Department of Health Services.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.  Okay.

MS. VON BEHREN:  One of my primary job responsibilities has been to collect and analyze data on asthma in California, and this morning I'm going to provide a little bit of asthma data that we have for the San Joaquin Valley.  I want to thank you for taking the time to hear about these issues.

We know that nearly 3 million Californians suffer from asthma based on our latest data from the California Health Interview Survey, and we also know that more people than ever are reporting that they have suffered from asthma at some point in their life.  In fact, lifetime asthma prevalence in California has increased 66 percent between 1984 and 2001 and this is based on the California Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System.

DHS's staff have been examining data statewide on asthma to monitor trends, and the purpose of our asthma surveillance efforts thus far have been to access public health status and establish public health priorities around asthma.  So as part of our overall surveillance program, we have examined asthma hospitalization rates in the eight San Joaquin Valley counties, including Fresno, Kern, San Joaquin, Kings, Madera, et cetera, and we've seen that Fresno, Kings, and San Joaquin Counties have had high overall asthma hospitalization rates compared to the state rate and this is for the year 2000.  These three counties also had high rates when we looked at the rates specifically for children.  However, I want to point out that hospitalization rates for asthma don't indicate how many people have asthma because it's such an infrequent event, and hospitalizations for asthma can often be prevented if this disease is well managed and if the asthmatics have access to medical care.

Also, based on recent estimates we have from the California Health Interview Survey, we know that the self-reported prevalence of asthma in Fresno County residents is higher than in the state as an average.  For all ages combined, 13.4 percent of Fresno County residents surveyed reported that they have active asthma and this is compared to 8.8 percent for the state.

The active asthma prevalence rates were also reported to be somewhat higher than the state average in Merced, Kings, and Madera Counties.  And in Fresno County, the estimated prevalence rate in children was especially high, 16.4 percent, as compared to the statewide average of 9.6 percent.  So it appears that Fresno County has the highest estimated prevalence of childhood asthma in the State of California, though these figures have some statistical uncertainty about them, and we can't say for sure which county has the highest rate.

I routinely collected asthma data that I've been describing is useful for understanding patterns and trends, and we are just beginning to examine the relationships of health outcomes to environmental factors and it's not always appropriate to use the kind of data routinely collected for surveillance to draw conclusions about the causes of asthma or to make direct links to air pollution.  There is a study being done in the Fresno area by University of California researchers in conjunction with the Air Resources Board and ____ Fresno Asthmatic Children's Environmental Study, and the next speaker is going to tell you more about that.

I also wanted to highlight again the study that Michael was just talking about, Dr. Lipsett, the Children's Health Study, which was done in Southern California.  The main finding of children living in high ozone communities who participated in many outdoor sports were more likely to develop asthma than the children in areas who are not in these sports.  They also found that on days with higher ozone concentration in the air, there were more school absences due to respiratory illnesses.


One more study that's going on in California, I wanted to bring attention to, is called CHAMACIS, Center for Health Assessment of Mothers and Children in Salinas.  This is another study looking at environmental causes of asthma in an agricultural community.  And so when those results become available, it might be of interest to people in the Central Valley.

DR. LIPSETT:  Well, I'm actually involved in that study.  I'm doing some of the respiratory analyses and we're just beginning the analysis of the kids when they're one years old.  I'm looking at respiratory outcomes up to age one.  So over the next couple of years, we should have some interesting _____, but the principal hypothesis, we're looking at pesticides, not so much air pollution, the impact of pesticides.

MS. VON BEHREN:  I'm going to stop there and just thank you for the opportunity.  I have a hard copy of this with an additional data table, if I can leave that with you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much as well.

Helene Margolis, thank you for joining us, Cal-EPA.

MS. HELENE MARGOLIS:  Yes.  Thank you.

Actually I'm going to fast forward through my presentation but I have hard copies here.  As you heard, we have a study that we embarked on here in Fresno, Fresno Asthmatic Children's Environment Study, the acronym being FACES. And the premise behind this study was that we knew that this was among children who have already been diagnosed but we also know that there is the tip of the iceberg of children who really are driving the healthcare costs and the underlying really susceptible children but we don't know who they are.  We don't know what it is that's predicting it.  It's a combination of their environment, social behavioral aspects, whether they have access to medical care, genetics, et cetera.  And so this study was fairly ambitious in looking at that.  We have a very large research team I'm representing.  Dr. Tager is the principal investigator at the University of California, Berkeley, and we'd like to acknowledge the California Air Resources Board and EPA, its ?? sponsors.

The objectives here were somewhat unique in that what we were saying is what is it that's causing the exacerbations and how do these repeated exacerbations translate into the child's health over the long term because asthma is complex and it can change its personality over time.  Some children are fairly severe and actually become less severe; and conversely, those who are mildly asthmatic can become more severe.  One of the big concerns is that the air pollution is contributing to the latter shift.

That's really the core objective of this study as well as defining what it is that's actually triggering the asthma day to day but how does that affect them over the long term?  And who's more susceptible or more vulnerable in terms of, they could be less biologically susceptible but under greater exposure conditions because let's say they live closer to a roadway; or conversely, you can have a child who's less exposed but more biologically susceptible so we're hoping to, in fact the study is designed to address these questions.

You've heard about air pollution.  I have a nice slide in there for you for that.  This slide actually highlights what we're looking at in terms of the glutins and the mix of exposures.  You've heard about particulate matter and the different size fractions.  This gives you a bird's eye view of the valley and basically the whole length of the valley is impacted by air pollution.  Therefore, our people are all impacted.  But essentially we're looking at the criteria glutins, ozone, oxides, and nitrogen, carbon monoxide.  But also we know that allergens affect asthmatics and so pollens and molds, second-hand tobacco smoke, and importantly, there may be an interaction between the natural things like pollens and air pollution so that you have a worse response to the pollen in the presence of the air pollution.

So we're looking at changes in lung function, how often they have acute symptoms, such as shortness of breath and wheeze and then over the long term how the severity might change.  That slide is just the child testing their lung function.

We're following about 250 children for up to four years with two-week daily tracking at least three times a year for each child.  The study area is actually built around, we design the study around a USEPA air quality monitoring effort, it's called a Super Sight Program.

One of the points I wanted to just show, this shows the participants' demographics, is that surprisingly -- I mean we're obviously dealing with air pollution.  But surprising to me was that, of the question of how any smokers living in the child's home that there were 23 percent of the homes had at least one smoker in it and these were of asthmatic children.  I mean you're doubling the jeopardy there in terms of air pollution, plus indoor.

We're also, as I said, trying to understand what the children are exposed to so it's a combination …(side 6)… what kind of activity patterns might lead to greater exposures and then whether a child suffers an adverse effect or an adult suffers a cardiac infarction.  We're not dealing with that list study.

I will basically, the point here, these are daily measures of the couple of types of PM.  The horizontal pink line is the state ambient air quality standard, and so that just gives you a sense of the number of days over a period of about six, seven years, how many days we're dealing with that are higher.  This just shows, we're trying to understand how the air pollution levels vary from that central sight to homes and schools.

So in summary, basically we're trying to address some unique questions, trying to understand better about how do we mitigate the risk for these children dealing with it not just by ambient air quality standards but what are the factors that predict greater illness.  While it's specific to the asthma children in Fresno, it's applicable to all of the state's children.  These are pollutants that are ubiquitous.  We're in progress and the first results are expected towards the end of this year.

Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And your results will be located -- when will your results be available?

MS. MARGOLIS:  We're expecting some preliminary or early results by the end of this year, early next year.  The definitive type of results would be a year beyond that.

One thing I will also note, the Children's Health Study, which I'm also involved, the Southern California one, there's a whole new wave of that study being sponsored by the National Institute of Health that's specifically looking at asthma among children in conjunction with air pollution.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you all.  Appreciate that.

The last panel, of course, we have public input after that.

Kevin Hamilton, Medical Advocates for Healthy Air; Kevin Hall, Sierra Club; Raquel Donoso, Latino Issues Forum; and Bonnie Homes, American Lung Association.

Thank you all for joining us.

Let's start with Mr. Hamilton.

MR. KEVIN HAMILTON:  Good afternoon, Senator, and thank you for inviting me…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Now what hat are you wearing at this presentation?  (Laughter)

MR. HAMILTON:  Today, at this presentation, I'm apparently with the Medical Advocates, not Alliance, for Healthy Air.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And who are they and can you tell us how long they've been meeting, what they do, and, of course, how was your organization addressing the effects of air pollution in the valley?

MR. HAMILTON:  Thank you.  That was what I wanted to address today.  I think it's important to understand where we come from and how it came to be.  I think that's my computer over there actually.  (Laughter)  Yes, that is mine.  I recognize it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Kevin, are we going hook that up?

MR. HAMILTON:  There is a Power Point on there that's very brief that I wanted to go to.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Absolutely.

MR. HAMILTON:  I can verbally start out with the Medical Advocates for Healthy Air were founded in response to those of us who are on the frontline of healthcare physicians, respiratory therapists, and nurses who are seeing as a rampant epidemic of chronic respiratory disease patients who were not only growing in number but becoming acutely ill with their disease more often.  This is a huge problem in our community and it's costing our community in the state a fortune in advanced medical care, of course.  Thank you so very much.

We then attempted to participate in the process and I actually spoke at a meeting, and I appreciate the fact that you've been so active in this almost three years ago now when you were in Fresno when I listened and I was the only healthcare person in the audience that day which makes you feel a little odd.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Was that at the Farm Bureau meeting?

MR. HAMILTON:  That's right.  Yes, yes.  What we discovered was, the process had no input from the medical community, virtually very little input from the medical community.  Our job, we felt, was to educate all the parties who are involved -- the public and also the political powers that be -- about the impact of air pollution on the population, not focusing just on asthma, which is my personal specialty, but also on a whole list of your whole body impact and the fact that the resolution process was failing miserably, at least from our estimation.

We decided to garner more members from the medical community so we were joined by pediatricians and family practice physicians in the Fresno community in this effort.  We meet monthly.  We discuss how we can bring more information to the public and we react to events that occurs, such as the Crippen fire.  People noted that I had more air time on TV than the regular news commentators in a two-week period there, trying to get public information out about what people needed to be aware of to protect themselves in this situation who lived in that community, noting that we have a lack of a response unit in place to deal with these kinds of events that occurred.  That was really emphasized by this particular event, as I'm sure you're well aware.

So medical advocates was established for that specific reason.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  When again was it established?

MR. HAMILTON:   It's been almost two years now.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Two years.  Okay.

MR. HAMILTON:  We petitioned the state about a year and ten months ago for recognition of our name and got that which is why we had to go from Alliance to Advocates because we already had Alliance.  (Laughter)

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I've gotcha.

MR. HAMILTON:  Let me just go ahead and fire the old…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  As you're firing that up, why do you refer to this as the Crippen fire?

MR. HAMILTON:  Archie Crippen…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I understand that.  I mean is he responsible then?  Is that why we call it the Crippen fire?

MR. HAMILTON:  That would be my understanding.  Again, my understanding is that that there is a dump site owned and operated by Crippen Industries, Incorporated, where he has a license to take in certain things.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I just wondered.

MR. HAMILTON:  And apparently that license was violated again. I'm hearing this second hand.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I just wondered if the health folks named it the Crippen fire or the City of Fresno named it the Crippen fire.

MR. HAMILTON:  The City of Fresno has been calling it the Crippen fire.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I understand why.

MR. HAMILTON:  We just call it the fire, the big fire, you know.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I call it the Crippen/City of Fresno fire.

MR. HAMILTON:  All right.  That seems totally appropriate, you have to deal with a much wider geographic area than we do.


So at any rate, so you understand a little bit more about more about the medical advocates for healthy air in our role.  We have been boxed and we've resented that deeply with other groups that have certainly an interest in this kind of an issue but have a different agenda quite often than ours on other issues than air quality.  We want to be sure that it's understood that our role is to provide medical information and to be sure that that information is taken into account in the decision-making process, and that once decisions are made and rules are implemented, we will be looking at the medical impact that those rules have on the community and then making new comment.

So I'm going to move through this very quickly.  Thank God everything's mobile here.

You already have seen a lot of these things so I'm not going to belabor the point, all the deaths, all the costs.  You should know that about 3 billion of this is in California.  Healthcare dollars in the valley lost a total of almost $1 billion.  This is a lot of money.

We studied the Fresno Unified School District with Elaine Beyer and her group and UCSF, and we looked at a 300 percent increase in asthma over a 20-year period.  We looked at the period from 1981 to 1999 and saw that increase after we adjusted for increase in the number of kids in the school system.  If we hadn't done that, it would have been a 600 percent increase so we have a disproportionate increase in that particular disease.

In the summer, you know, ozone is a year-round phenomena in Fresno but interestingly enough, worse in the summer but it does occur year round.  And as you can see, certain groups of folks have studied this and given information about it.  You've seen this slide.  David Pepper displayed this slide so you've already seen this.  He and I have done these presentations back and forth for quite a long time.

What you did see earlier was a representation of a study that I initiated looking at community medical center's data on emergency room admissions for the previous three years that you see here in a fiscal standpoint from September to August.  What I wanted to know is how does asthma and other respiratory conditions -- the blue represents asthma, the red represents other diseases -- emphysema, chronic bronchitis -- and the blue represents all other causes that represent shortness of breath, cough, things like that, that brought people to the emergency room.

The anomaly in the 1999-2000 year where you see a lot of light blue suddenly and the dark goes away, we actually investigated that and discovered that we had changed coating of corporations and they were miscoding our ER visits for six months, losing us an awful lot of money, but that's fixed now.  You can still see that this is related.

Now when I go from this slide to this slide, David showed you this makes a lot more sense.  This is the same three-year period that you just saw here.  These are the three years.  There's January in the middle and December, the heighth or particulate season.  Notice in the data that I turned this data in through an agreement with Cal-State Fresno's ISIS Program to be analyzed using global information services technology to look for statistical relationships between these admissions and air pollution factors.  We wanted to see, is this real?  Because you need to know that, and I have to confess, we weren't sure.  I'll be the first one to tell you so this is what we saw.

The yellow line representing these visits, the red line representing these visits -- yellow, particulates; blue, carbon monoxide; again, back and forth.  Excuse me.  If you see, look, these curves match so closely.  Now you recognize where this data came from.  This wasn't made up.  This represents 13,000 total visits to the emergency room over a period of three years to three hospitals. We're averaging 320 visits a month to the three emergency rooms that are just respiratory related across the whole span of the year.

Of our population of patient payers, 34 percent are Medi-Cal; 18 percent are in the medically indigent services program.  Over 50 percent of our patient population is in that category of reimbursement.  For an ER visit for asthma right now -- I also ran this data out of curiosity -- Medi-Cal reimburses our system $88 for an ER visit for asthma.  The Indigent Services Program only reimburses what the disproportionately share funding folks over at _____ calculate we should get back which actually averages less than that.  It costs us, just for a visit, just the cost, to provide a service for a person who comes to ER and spends about eight or ten hours for an asthma visit about $320.  People expect us to continue to stay in business and be a safety net healthcare provider under these kinds of conditions not realistic.  You couldn't operate a business like that.  I certainly couldn't.  Believe it or not, one of my hats, I'm a business manager of a program and I operate a fairly significant budget and I'm responsible for that.

I think it's important that we all know who's at greatest risk here.  If the AQI is over 100, people like to say children, but it's actually children who are 14 and under, not just six year olds, not just three year olds, not just a few children.  It's all children 14 and under are at risk, not just for asthma but for having their lungs develop poorly which will make them susceptible to other diseases as they go through life.  They'll have bronchitis more often; they'll have coughs more often; they may develop heart disease more often; they'll be more at risk in the rest of their life to develop these problems that will again cost the healthcare system more money and decrease their productivity as human beings, their ability to learn and to become good taxpayers supporting our system.

The elderly at over 55 years old, all impacted when the AQI is over 100.  Pregnant mothers, people with asthma and all these other diseases you've seen, this is 51 percent of the population of Fresno County, for goodness sakes.  The average amount of the population of the counties in Fresno that categorize in this group is 42 percent.  Four out of every ten of our people in every county shouldn't be outside breathing our air when the AQI is over 100.  Spare the Air Day goes into place at 150.  Something's cracked with the system there and we've got to fix this because again the fiscal cost to this state is going to be huge as this progresses.  I mean it's obvious.  You see this.  I don’t need to keep pouring this out.

This is what we do for our patients, try to create little, silly things that aren't really silly to tell them how to live their lives.  What I have a problem with is, Dr. Pepper pointed out we're taking sort of a proactive approach but the reality is we are taking a reactive approach.  In medicine, that's the wrong way to go.  In business, that's the wrong way to go.  Whenever you get into reactive mode, you're in crisis mode, you're in survival mode.  We are reacting to a problem.  Proactive is to eliminate the root cause of the problem and that's what medical advocates is all about.

We're here to get into the proactive mode and this is what we feel we need to see in the valley, more trees in parking lots, and you can read all this stuff here and you understand it very well, I'm sure, and we even tell people this is what you can do personally right from your home and this is our public information campaign, not just the big industries.  It's me, it's you, it's Kevin Hall here beside me, it's David Pepper behind me.  We have to do things right from our front yard, right from our living room, so don't think medical advocates is out here just beating up on large industries.  We're actually saying we're going in your house.  We're saying you need to change the way you live too at home to deal with this whole problem.  These are the resources I use and I thank you very much, and happily my hospital corporation is very pleased to have me here today also doing this.  ________ Medical Center has appointed me one of two people representing Fresno County to the Great Valley Center effort.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.

Just one question.  You used the word when you began, "epidemic," and I'm just wondering why you use that word.

MR. HAMILTON:  There's a certain number of prevalence of disease that the CDC has to require the call for an epidemic to occur in the population which is approximately 5 percent of a population to be impacted by a known infectious organism and then they can declare an epidemic in that region and men in white suits start showing up with the idea of hospitalizing people and interning people.  Asthma prevalence in Fresno County is 16.4 percent in children or at least symptoms are.  We’re not sure about the prevalence.  I know because I developed this study and got it funded by California Endowment to look at ___ I got in Selma and the prevalence there for sure in children is 15.8 percent.

You see what I'm saying?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Where are the men in white suits then?

MR. HAMILTON:  That's right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No.  Where?

MR. HAMILTON:  Exactly.  Where are they?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. HAMILTON:  We want to know that.  Where are they?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  I appreciate it.  I just wondered because it's a very strong word, "epidemic."

MR. HAMILTON:  Strong times, strong words; strong action is needed.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thanks, Kevin, appreciate it.

MR. HAMILTON:  You're welcome.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Kevin Hall, Sierra Club.  Thank you for joining us.

MR. KEVIN HALL:  Thank you for inviting me and thank you very much for bringing this sort of focus on such a critically important issue.  I know you're going to bring this sort of impartiality and hard analysis necessary.  We're all trying.  I understand that the focus today is human health and that's certainly what's motivated me to become involved in this effort and I'll just make it very short.

Three-and-a-half years ago, my wife and I decided that we should probably leave our home, Fresno.  Our son is fourth generation.  He's 11 and a half years old and he was about eight.  Nearly all of our siblings and cousins have left.  Out of 21 of our generation, three remain.  We felt that as parents we were probably being quite negligent in raising our son in this air pollution, given what we know.  We gave it a month.  We looked, we talked as a family.  Both our mothers are alive and still living in Fresno.  My older brother and I have a gate to our back fence and our kids are all within in a year or two of each other in age.  We have friends we've known all of our lives and over several generations.

So instead, we decided, between fight and flight, to stay and fight.  So I took myself out of my career as a publisher of agricultural magazines, trade magazines written for growers, production -- I should say producer of farm and trade shows, Ag Fresno, Salinas Farm Show -- and decided I would dedicate myself as much time as possible at least to coming to the air pollution battle without an agenda, without an invested financial interest, only the interest of my son and in my hopes that he would stay here and all his friends and his cousins.

I gave myself six months to ramp up on the issue.  That's why you found us serving together on a transportation committee for the governor's economic summit.  I also served on the Ag Committee and the Air and Water Committee.  I found that these processes were siloed, that either the committees weren't informing one another in their relationships, at least on the issue of air quality, and I was also looking at every government agency I could find in action, and that's usually one word but sometimes two words, "in action," on the issue.  I observed every level of our transportation planning agencies, our county boards, our planning commissions.  In the process, I somehow ended up on our county planning commission.

About four months into the process, I decided after careful investigation to join the Sierra Club.  As what one of our family heroes, John F. Kennedy, described himself as a pragmatic optimist, that's my analysis of the San Joaquin Valley.  What I found in the Sierra Club is an understanding of the issue and a willingness to apply environmental law to a crisis such as these, and I agree this is a crisis and an epidemic.

In the last 18 months, with attorneys from Earth Justice based in Oakland, working with Medical Advocates for Healthy Air, Latino Issues Forum, the three Sierra Club chapters in the San Joaquin Valley, we have filed together or separately, but the Sierra Club in all of these suits, five separate lawsuits, one against our local air district and four against the federal EPA.  We simply are looking at violations of the federal Clean Air Act and suggesting, or more than suggesting, of demanding, that the process be put back on track, that it's been derailed in the San Joaquin Valley, that we've never had an effective or legally -- well, they've never submitted the legal requirement which is an attainment plan for either particulates or ozone that meets the requirements of the law.  We've prevailed in three of those suits so far and we anticipate we are in settlement on our fourth, and we filed our fifth last week over the future industrial ?? that you may recall in late 2001. 

Again, we are simply asking that the San Joaquin Valley join in the process that has been successful and is succeeding in many of the air districts throughout the state and nation and in the interest of our children and our seniors and ourselves.  I recognize a need to preserve our economic base of agriculture and I think we can do that, but I think we need to maintain this context of the Clean Air Act.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Kevin, thank you.  Just a couple of questions.

How do you go from the Farm Bureau Trade Show all the way to the Sierra Club, would be my first, and I think your name and Lou Cole's name comes up more than any other names in the Central Valley in terms of -- it would appear, your work on air and other environmental issues, and I guess my question would be, given that you have, in essence, been part of the agricultural community writing and part of that, pragmatic optimist is a good term for this committee as well because, as you know, having served on the many committees, particularly the governor's summit, this issue had probably not been and had not been part of that agenda until, I guess now; we've got a committee.  You're out doing something different; I'm doing something different.

Given that, from your perspective, what's realistic?  I mean you've got an ag industry, you've got a dairy industry, we've got big, huge special interests involved in this obviously.  There are industries who are creating their own groups, who in essence, clean the air themselves, many of the industries that we seek to regulate, many of the industries that you're suing or not suing but getting somebody to do something about this.

From your perspective, what would you do?  I mean you're sitting on the other side of this mike.  I mean how would you go about this?  I'm real interested in that perspective.

MR. HALL:  Thank you.  I think that we should look at what has worked in other air districts.  To begin with, you never exempt your major industries.  No other major industries are exempt anywhere in the country from the federal Clean Air Act requirements and that's why the state will be required, of course, to draft legislation and pass it to repeal the ag exemption.

I look at the exempts, the loopholes, the exempt sources.  I see dramatic change occurring in the San Joaquin Valley.  I think our largest growth sectors are distribution centers.  I think they're a dramatic change in that sector of business.  It needs to be looked at very closely.  The California Clean Air Act allows for indirect source fees.  Our air district has the power and the authority to pass that sort of rule.  I looked at it a decade ago but it was derailed.  The building industry is not fond of that idea.

Regardless, we can have a tomato processing plant spending millions of dollars to reduce air pollution on one side of the interchange at the freeway, and across the way we have IKEA or some other large corporation, 1.7 million square feet at that center.  And in Kern County, the largest building in California is you're generating massive amounts of truck traffic.  That's an indirect source.

I maintain they should have to buy their way into the pollution budget and that's what the California Clean Air Act requires.  Through that, we generate a revenue stream with which we can go to the farms and say we have the money we need to retrofit the equipment, to replace the pumps.  I think the state needs to do away with the standby charges for electricity on the farms.  I think also that our transportation planning agencies can very easily -- I think it's a pretty straightforward process of protecting our federal highway dollars.  All we need to do to the state implementation plan process for our attainment plans of ozone of particulates is commit those transportation dollars under what are called transportation controlled measures. They're then safeguarded.  They're firewalled at that point.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Give me a perspective on dust.  Obviously there's a suit recent, and I know I'm going to ____ talk about that but, you know -- you're from the Latino Issues Forum?  Where do you live?

MS. RAQUEL DONOSO:  In the Bay Area.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me ask the guy who grew up in the Central Valley then.  I mean realistically, there's dust everywhere, everywhere you turn, every irrigation district, where I live in Shafter, everywhere.  So give me your perspective on what we should do.

MR. HALL:  I've been on hundreds of farms as a reporter and interviewed countless growers.  My dad was the office manager for a large farming operation.  We know that farmers are the most innovative, intelligent people on the planet practically.  I mean these folks, they know how to address problems.  The diesel engine manufacturers have never had to engineer for pollution control until recently and now they're working on it.

I leave it to the farm industry to address these in a technological sense.  I will point out that dust control on these roads is done in the growing season because it keeps the mites down, so farmers on a regular basis keep the dust down on the roads.  What they're objecting to is the additional cost of doing that during the harvest season, so we're in that tradeoff between economic costs and protecting public health.

I also would maintain that and the disking and filing operations, and I'm loathe to suggest any technological solutions because the limb will be cut off behind me.  I don't think we've ever had to engineer for that.  Do we simply need to hood, lightly hood certain pieces of equipment?  Will that reduce dust?  I don't know, but we haven't been exploring those engineering techniques for the last decade, that we might have had that loophole left in place.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Kevin, given we both grew up in the valley, you know, the argument will be or it has been the valley was a dusty place before we got here; it's going to be a dusty place always.  So your perspective on that is simply…

MR. HALL:  I think that parts of the valley certainly were, that you look down in your area, there certainly were seasonal lakes that were quite large and produced a fair amount of dust in the dry seasons but the valley is largely a grasslands, a savanna.  It's a very rich area, and look at the San Luis Wildlife Refuge complex and you'll see that the valley in its pristine state looked like.  I'm not advocating to return to that state.  I am saying simply that it's partially true but by no means entirely true.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you, appreciate it.  I look forward to seeing you at the hearings as well.  We have 12 of them.

MR. HALL:  If I may, my focus really is on the political process and solutions and I was directly involved in trying to generate public health response to the Crippen fire, and I'd be delighted to participate when you talk about it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  We will have that hearing soon, as soon as, I understand, Mr. ______, Sr., is the pinpoint person on that so we look forward to having a hearing and talking more about that in Fresno.  ____________.

Latino Issues Forum.  Thank you.

MS. RAQUEL DONOSO:  Good afternoon.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  By saying that you live in San Francisco by no means biases.  I just wanted to kind of talk to Kevin as to valley people.

MS. DONOSO:   No.  That's okay.  Very definitely.  I’m Raquel Donoso of Latino Issues Forum.  We actually have a regional office that we just opened this year in Fresno that is doing a project…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is it a PO Box or is someone really there?

MS. DONOSO:  It's an actual office.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is somebody really there?

MS. DONOSO:  There are two people there.  We have DeLeon ?? who was going to join us here today but could not and Gloria Sorio ?? Delgado who is a long-time resident of the valley -- both of them are -- so they are actually the hands and feet in the valley and I'm just trying to represent their words today.

I run for LAF.  We advocate on behalf of Latinos and work on policy issues related to health, environment.  We also work on telecommunications, civic participation, leadership development, a variety of issues for over 15 years.  About six years ago, we've been hearing a lot from the community in terms of asthma and what we did was we had created a report.  We went out, we did community forums, we heard back from people.  The response really was this is a really big issue and people had ideas of where it was coming from -- air quality, indoor air quality, outdoor air quality, housing, schools -- these were all issues that were being brought up so we did…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me interrupt you when you said you did community forums.  When and where?

MS. DONOSO:  We did them -- well, we recently did some…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Were they in the valley?

MS. DONOSO:  We did one in Stockton, yes.  They were throughout the state because we are a statewide organization and so one was held in Stockton.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I just wanted to be real clear when you say we had community forums.  One might infer from that they were in all in Fresno and Stockton and Bakersfield, so you had statewide forums.

MS. DONOSO:  We had statewide community forums.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  All right.

MS. DONOSO:  And then what I did a couple of years ago was produce a second report and I believe we did send your office one but I can get you another one called Taking Action where we looked more closely at some of the factors, such as housing, outdoor air quality, and indoor air quality.  Based on this, we created a project that we're now doing in the San Joaquin Valley. 

Right now, we're holding what we call pláticas or discussions of community residents and these are all just in the valley, so we had one in Cutler Rosie ??, Tuleville, Goshen, Saville, and Heron.  We're also set to do some in Parlier, Mendota, Bakersfield, Delano, LeMan ??.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could you send us that schedule so we can have…

MS. DONOSO:  Yes.  I will definitely send that to you.

Then we've also done several in Fresno in the more metropolitan area that we're going to follow up with regional community forums and a valley-wide summit on this issue.

Basically what we are coming from the premise of is, when you come to meetings like this, there's not a lot of Latinos represented.  There's not a lot of our voices being heard.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, the chairman's Latino.

MS. DONOSO:  Except for the chair, definitely.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That accounts for something, right?

MS. DONOSO:  And we are very excited about that, and a lot of people don't know where to go, who to call, who's responsible for this, who's responsible for that.  So part of what we're doing is hearing from residents, what their top priorities are, as well as providing them with information to empower themselves to go ahead and do what they need to.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you're gathering these in the evenings?

MS. DONOSO:  In the evenings. They all have been in Spanish.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is it just for Latinos because…

MS. DONOSO:  It is right now, yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I just wondered because you have some folks come up that live in West Fresno and live in East Bakersfield and other places and they're affected as well.

MS. DONOSO:  The community forums we'll do after these pláticas, will be focused on general population, but right now we're trying to get data and information from Latinos in the valley.  But the three major concerns that people have been saying over and over again, and we haven't done all the analyses yet, but pesticide exposure definitely is a top concern.  There's also a huge amount of concern over these dairies, that small communities are surrounded by dairies, that they smell, they can see the dirty air, they can smell it, and that's the big concern.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me stop you there.  So you're talking about dairies that come to build or are you talking about cities that catch up to dairies and then the dairies are asked to move?  Which one are you focusing on?  Encroachment or are you talking about new dairies?

MS. DONOSO:  Encroachment.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you mean, as cities expand -- let's say the City of Bakersfield expands up to, I don't know, Kratzmeyer Road where there hasn't been a dairy in 30 years and then all of a sudden people don't want the dairy even though…

MS. DONOSO:  Actually, I think what they're talking about is people coming, right, and then small communities being surrounded then by multiple dairies.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I gotcha.

MS. DONOSO:  The other thing that had to come up as well is, and this was even before the fire, is what happens in emergencies, environmental emergencies.  People have had huge pesticide exposures and there's no response to that either, and I know there are groups in Earlimart and other places that are organizing around that, so lack of protocol was a really big issue.  Then that was also compounded by the fact that most of the people who have been coming to the pláticas don't have health insurance.  We know that and they definitely expressed a huge feeling that it's very desperate, the situation that people are in when these emergencies happen and then there's no protocol and then there's nowhere to go and you can't afford to pay and you don't have insurance and one thing after the other.

So that is basically what we've been doing and really trying to empower local, smaller communities.  We've been working with three partners on this so we're not doing it on our own, in the southern part of the valley, the UFW.  We're also working with Family Healthcare Network which is a network of community clinics in Tulare County and Fresno Metro Ministry in Fresno to develop this model.  So that's part of the work that we're doing, and what we want to have is, instead of us setting the policy agenda that's imposing, we want to hear from people so that we can do policy and create policies that really matter.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are you going to talk to farmers?

MS. DONOSO:  I don’t know if we're going to.  I mean I'm sure we will but not at this stage yet.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m just wondering because what happens is, you give us a report that gives us perspective but you make us do the hard work and then we bring farmers in and they go, well, we had no input and we don't understand this and why didn't they talk to us?  I'm just asking, do you think at some point you'll talk to the industry folks?

MS. DONOSO:  Yes.  And I think in the valley too there's a need to, there's a lot of different efforts going on and I think there is a need to kind of coordinate some of the efforts that's going on so that will probably be something.

I did want to make two more comments.  One of them is, some of the work that's been happening in other places in this state has been that promotora programs where people are actually going into people's homes.  They have it for asthma in Orange County and also in Consilio ?? of San Mateo is also looking at doing it for asthma, and I think that's a model that works in our community and I would like to see replicated in different parts throughout the valley.

The other thing is, in the budget, the whole polluter pay shift.  I'm very skeptical of that and concerned about that fact because we've seen what particulate matter, the Environmental Working Group produced a report that said that communities with higher incomes, the polluters in those communities receive higher fines and so then they're able, so that would really, I think, for us, looking at communities with lower income, if the polluters in those communities are fined less than in other communities and that money is directly going into the regulation, I see an issue there in terms of the amount of regulators or how we're going to be able to keep up the regulation in those communities so that's one of the issues.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MS. DONOSO:  And then the other one…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I was a little confused on that.  I'd like to talk to you more about the polluter-haze concept because obviously we just voted on some trailer bills, water and air, and I think you would be with our Republican colleagues in saying that polluters shouldn't pay and I’m kind of wondering why the Latino Issues Forum…

MS. DONOSO:  No.  I'm not saying polluters shouldn't pay.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do the taxpayers pay?

MS. DONOSO:  No, no, no.  But I am saying that we shouldn't -- it takes a long time sometimes to collect those fines from polluters.  And if that's going to be the only mechanism by which we fund regulators, I am concerned that there should be general fund money that continues to go into funding these agencies.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.  Okay.  I don't agree with you but okay.

MS. DONOSO:  Then lastly where these PM monitors are located because the other thing that we heard is that this very PM is probably one of the largest sources of pollutants in the valley, and what we're seeing is often that they are located in higher income neighborhoods rather than lower income neighborhoods.

I don’t know the science between the air and that kind of stuff.  I mean that technology and that engineering, I would leave two people who do it.  But I would like to make sure that in the valley they are put in places that make the most sense for the communities that live in the valley.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  I was going to ask a further question on that to our airport folks in a minute.

Thank you for coming.  I appreciate it.

Lung Association.

MS. BONNIE HOLMES-GEN:  Thank you.  I'm Bonnie Holmes-Gen with the American Lung Association of California.

The Lung Association, as you know, is committed to the prevention and control of lung disease.  I work with the state office but we have 15 affiliates around the state and we have three lung associations in the valley, and the largest affiliate is the Lung Association of the Central Valley which is based in Fresno and our Executive Director there, Chuck St. Agana ??, is extremely involved on a daily basis with the air pollution problems in the valley and I'm sure you will meet him.  If you have not, you will see him at various of the forums that you'll be holding in the valley.  We work very closely.

You've heard excellent presentations on health and that's something, of course, we can present a lot of information on health -- impacts of air pollution, on the increases in asthma cases, the increases in hospital visits, emergency room visits, school absences, all those indicators you've already heard about.  But I thought I would just quickly run through some of the things that the Lung Association is doing in the valley and some of our key recommendations as you move forward.


The American Lung Association is involved both in, of course, the service aspect, in terms of asthma management education, and we're also involved in advocacy efforts.  We have numerous programs in the Central Valley to educate health professionals, to educate parents, and to provide them with education on how to deal with asthma for their children and loved ones.  We have special education for schools' staff on dealing with asthmatic children.


Last year, we reached over 1,400 school staff at this special education.  We hold asthma camps.  Last year, we had over 650 adults attending asthma camps.  I'm sorry.  We had 150 children.  We also have hundreds of adults attending our Better Breathers Clubs.  So we have just a mix of activities directed to both children and adults. 


We've also developed five asthma coalitions in seven counties.  The coalitions are in Fresno, Madera -- that's one coalition.  Another one in Merced, Mariposa, Kings, Tulare, and Kern County.  We have five coalitions of seven counties and each coalition has a large number of members, and they reach out to thousands of lung disease victims.  We're also involved with a statewide grant to help encourage and promote cities and counties to purchase cleaner vehicles for their fleets.


This is a very important program.  As you've heard, vehicle emissions combustion is responsible for a large portion of air pollution and we're encouraging cities and counties through resolutions and policies or other efforts to make a commitment to purchase the cleanest available vehicle they can for their fleet.  And, of course, we encourage for light-duty fleets, electric and hybrid vehicles where possible, and for heavy-duty fleets, natural gas and alternative fuels to reduce the exposure to diesel exhaust.  As was mentioned, we'll also be involved in the development of an asthma summit this spring and we're very involved, along with all the partners in the valley, in helping to provide input to the development of the Air Pollution Summit that's going to be held also, that Mayor Autry is very involved in.


Just some key messages that I wanted to convey to you is that, as you've heard, the San Joaquin Valley pollution problem is a regional problem and we absolutely have to have regional solutions.  And three areas that we would hope that you would look at, one is we absolutely have to deal with the land use transportation air quality connection.  It's all a package.  Vehicle trips in sprawl, as you know, are major contributors for air pollution problems and we now have a situation where we have transportation planning fragmented among multiple jurisdictions in cities and counties all over the valley, and we need to have a mechanism to make ensure that our transportation planning dollars and infrastructure are contributing to and not at counter-purposes to our air quality goals and so we absolutely have to deal with that area.  It's a major nut to crack.  We need to look at the regional San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District Board which now has the city and county representation.  But we believe we need to add a regional perspective to that board or to deal with these regional air quality problems, and we need to look at adding perspectives from health and medical professionals and public members to really add a regional perspective and a health perspective to that board.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask you a question then.  Was that your last…


MS. HOLMES-GEN:  Well, my last point is diesel, diesel emissions.  We're extremely concerned about diesel combustion.  We absolutely have to establish a new funding source.  I know that's a difficult word to say, "new funding," in this year but there are creative ways, I think, that we can find new funding sources to reduce exposure to diesel particulates.  We need to get older polluting diesel equipment off the road, we need to replace with newer, cleaner equipment, and we absolutely need to focus a lot of this effort in the agricultural sector.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You will be ______ in the bill that we'll probably be introducing on older vehicles that is currently in Counsel that we're working on, so that might be of interest to you.


The third point you mentioned -- I’m sorry.


MS. HOLMES-GEN:  The second point, the Regional, the San Joaquin Unified Air Pollution Control District.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Control District.  Your opinion, any of you, do you like the board?  Should there be more members added to the board?  Is the board captured by industry; is it not?  These are elected officials.  I mean should we change the mix of the board, in your opinions?  Should there be folks on it?  Med folks?  I don't know.  I don't know your opinion on it.


MR. HAMILTON:   I'd like to comment on that.  That's something that we've taken up and you'll find our names as signatory on a letter that you'll be receiving regarding this issue directly. 


Watching the board operate, unfortunately is watching what appears to be a dysfunctional attempt to solve a very difficult problem.  A good attempt, a good-faith attempt, certainly.  And at the time it was developed, I'm sure it was considered to be the best possible answer to this problem and, like I say, like any good faith attempt, we need to look at how it was established, look at what happened, and what are the results, and the results have obviously not been what we would like to have seen.  I think everybody agrees with that.


Therefore, the present mechanism is failing and it needs to be repaired, possibly torn down and rebuilt.  There are no economists on the board; there are no medical people on the board.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Go slow for us.


MR. HAMILTON:  I'm sorry.  I think that we need to have economists on board.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Economists on the board.


MR. HAMILTON:  We need medical --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Medical.


MR. HAMILTON:  -- people on the board.  We need people to represent the business interest in the community on the board, and we don't need as many political representatives on the board.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is it you don't need as many political representatives on the board or you think you should just have additional people on the board?


MR. HAMILTON:  I think you reach a saturation point when you have too many people and someone else with a better mind than mine would determine what would be the optimal size group to make these kinds of decisions but I would advocate…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That would be the legislature.


MR. HAMILTON:  That would be you, folks, yes.  You do a lot of working groups, not that I don't.  But what I found, is that when we get into groups of more than ten or 15 people, things get a little too cumbersome to operate with.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you would downsize the board, recommend economists, recommend business folks, recommend the medical folks on it, and there should be no advocacy groups on it?


MS. HOLMES-GEN:  And a public member, and a public member.


MR. HAMILTON:  And one public member.  I agree, I agree.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What would that add?  Because, again, in the world of spot bills that we're working on, our air package -- I have you here so I might as well ask the question.  We are thinking about how to reformulate the board in a way and so your input is important here.


This is not my recommendation.  It's yours -- downsize it, add some folks to it.  So what does that add?  What does that do?


MR. HALL:  Senator, what that has added in the South Coast Air Quality Management District, our voting members of the board who are thinking regionally and willing to act on a regional basis; unfortunately, our air district board of directors has 11 members, one from each of the eight counties, and three from cities which are based on small, medium, and large on a rotating system through South Central and northern parts of the valley and we're hoping in that situation that people with expertise in various areas could lead and advocate, not necessarily capturing majority votes.  Maybe they'll be off on their own getting their three votes against the 11 or eight.  But I think that what's lacking is the ability and the capacity to think and act regionally because each of those locally elected politicians must go home in answer to a very specific constituency and process that is sometimes dominating.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I'm just wondering.  There was an issue in our county, Kern County, one of my counties, where the Citizen Board member, I believe president, resigned and wrote Barbara Patrick that she didn't feel there was really any input so what's the use of being, even having a Citizen Advisory Group?  This isn't even a member of the board.  This is an advisory group member, and I think there was some comments in the Bakersfield Californian regarding just the lack of input in this process.  As I mentioned, we were very interested in the spot bill that may change the mix of that board, and you're here now so, again, Kevin I really appreciate what you think that might add.  But at the end of the day, you mentioned South Coast.  What's different about that board and our board?


MR. HALL:  It has these sorts of members on it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But what's different -- Kevin, I’m sorry -- the kinds of discussions, from your opinion only, what's the difference?  Maybe we use it as a model?  If that's the case, then what would be different?  What is your opinion on that?

MR. HALL:  The proof's in the pudding if you look at what they've accomplished over the last decade, more than a decade, and the dramatic reductions that they've achieved in their air pollution and the dramatic drop they've seen in violations of…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that correlated with the board?


MR. HALL:  The board's actions?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I mean is it correlated with the kinds of people on the board?

MS. HOLMES-GEN:  It's really directly correlated.  You know, when the board members have changed and others are more steeped in the history of this than I.  But when the board membership changed, there was a definite change in direction of the South Coast and there was the adoption of more stringent, new regional measures that really cut down on pollution.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  More people at the table to be able to offer different perspectives so you don't hit lawsuits maybe down the line in the event, maybe someone listening…

MS. HOLMES-GEN:  Looking out from a regional perspective to hopefully, yes, avoid those lawsuits and do the hard things that need to be done.  That's what we need.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Kevin, you used the word "dysfunctional" of the board?

MR. HAMILTON:  Yes, the process.  I can give you an example of that, if you'd like --

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. HALL:  -- that I observed directly, that it was troublesome to me, and it forced us and Medical advocates into this position of joining a lawsuit which none of us had ever been involved in suing anybody before in our lives.  You can assume we didn't take this step lightly.

We watched during the _____ discussions a negotiation to consensus and we were part of that citizens group that was giving input there and we worked with the Air Board and we were very pleased with the way we felt that process was going.  We didn't get everything we wanted; everybody didn't get everything they wanted which means you probably have crafted something that -- you know, consensus is reached.  So within three weeks' time, and I attended all these meetings so I was just staggered by what occurred.  We went from a regulation that we had agreed with, maybe not with all we wanted but we all agreed we would support the board on this issue.  Not only that, we'd stand there beside them with their constituency firing at them saying, hey, if we were all here, you know, going on this agreement, in three weeks, the thing was completely changed.  There were no public meetings on it.  You know this as well as I do, and just an example within the rule, 50 vehicle trips a day turned into two tractor trailer truck trips a day magically, just like that, and that's just a small example of what occurred in that rule.  It proved to me that a process that was supposed to be public and open had become dysfunctional.

By adding these extra voting members and decreasing possibly a few of the voting members that are unfortunately obligated to political constituencies, we forced the development of consensus and groups have to begin to work together and form coalitions within the group of the board rather than just one group being able to steam roll everybody else and I think that's a healthy way to do business.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Any thoughts before…

MS. DONOSO:  Well, I think the only other thing that I was going to add is, really one of the main things that we want to do by being in the valley, is to make sure that there are community members and representation at the meetings.  But the meetings often, there's no translators.  They have been -- so I think if you're changing the board members or if you do something to ensure that there's greater community participation within the board and that's their vision, then they will be committed to having translators to having meetings during times…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that translator on a bilingual basis or that a translator to understand the technical jargon?  (Laughter)

MS. DONOSO:  Well, I would say both.

MR. HAMILTON:  We've talked about them removing the acronyms from the process.  I brought that up.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  If you just took the acronyms out, I would probably sit through half the board meetings.

MS. DONOSO:  Or the public notices that go out to families that are often not in 4th-grade reading levels.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The last question, following on that, from you folks, is that, again, I go back to the story in the _____ of California and about the Citizen Advisory president resigning and feeling there was no input, are you aware of the Citizen Advisory Board?  Do they do anything?  Have they participated?  How does it work?

MR. HALL:  It's called a Citizens Advisory Committee, and in Fresno County, our environmental representative runs our diesel bus fleet for the City of Fresno.  So as a county planning commissioner, used lots of responsibility and no real power, I think it's important to be involved on that sort of committee.  They can have a voice but they have no real authority so it's an advisory committee and I wish that person had stayed involved and I'd be happy to serve on ours.  But somehow, I’m not deemed qualified.

If you wanted any final thoughts…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, no.  I'm asking, as we formulate a bill or a bill that might readjust the board at medical folks and the economists and business people as well as advocates, you know, I'm debating whether bigger, smaller is better or bigger is fine, the one point.  The other point do you beef up the Citizens Advisory groups so it's real and it's just an advisory group then and the meetings are more accessible, or do you just keep things as status quo?  So those are the kind of the options as I look at them.

MR. HALL:  I would urge you to look at a couple of working models.  One is South Coast and the other is the ARB.  I'd would have you talk to Dr. Lloyd ?? and see how that committee's structured because that's comparable to what we're describing too.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you, all.

MS. HOLMES-GEN:  Can I make one quick comment?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, absolutely.

MS. HOLMES-GEN:  You're so nice.

Just with due respect to my colleague, I wanted to mention that the polluter-pay fee bill that you voted on, AB 10, is a bill that we strongly support.  We support the Air Board's activities, and it is funded by fees and not by fines.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I got you there.  You didn't have to announce that I voted for it but that's okay.  (Laughter)

MS. HOLMES-GEN:  Well, I…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I know.  I'm joking with you.

Thank you all.  Thank you very much.

MR. HALL:  See you in Fresno.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  See you in Fresno.  We do have some folks who would like to say some words in terms of public participation.  First of all, is Carolyn Ratto here?  Okay.  Come on up.  Is Craig Rust ?? still here?  No Craig Rust.  Terry McHale?  No Terry McHale.  Bob Hoffman?  No Bob Hoffman.  Kelly Jensen?  No Kelly Jensen.  And Carol Parmely?  Okay.

Then we have one member of the public that will give comment.  Oh, here comes Carol; is that right?  Okay.  Come on up.

After this, we're going to adjourn and we're going to reconvene -- let me get my schedule.  Where's the schedule of hearings?

We will reconvene on February 28 in Fresno and that will be titled The Cost Missing, Federal Control Guidelines.  We will then end up on March 7 at the agricultural pavilion in Bakersfield and that hearing is titled The Agricultural Industry in the Central Valley and Central Valley Air Pollution.  So those are the next two hearings and I do want to thank both of you members and the public for coming and go ahead and give us your perspective.

MS. CAROLYN RATTO:  I'll try to hurry.  I'm sure you're just as hungry as I am.

I am the coordinator for Operation Clean Air.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Hold on.  Let's make sure we can hear you.  Is that mike on?  Okay.  Go ahead.

MS. RATTO:  I'm the coordinator for Operation Clean Air and this is a very new initiative.  The Grape Valley Center was first contacted in October in charge of coordinating the effort and we were brought on board in December.  I am Carolyn Ratto, the person who was hired to coordinate the effort, and I have been an elected official for 11 years in local government so I have some experience in the political arena.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Where would that be?

MS. RATTO:  At the City of Turlock.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Turlock.

MS. RATTO:  And I was the President of the League of California Cities as well.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Did you go to the governor's press conference?

MS. RATTO:  No, no, I did not.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MS. RATTO:  Some people are just beginning to hear about this, quite a few people, actually, and they are assuming that this is a Fresno initiative and I want to clarify that it's a regional initiative that was born in Fresno.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MS. RATTO:  The initial component of it, starting with December through the summit, which is April 23, has been funded through local business and nonprofit grants.  The mission statement, as adopted so far, is to create a five-year action plan that will clean our air and increase economic prosperity in the in the San Joaquin Valley.  They are involving a nine-county region.  It originally was the eight counties of the air pollution control district that Mariposa has asked to please be a part and it is an integrated sector approach.  We have initially organized into 12 inter-sectors and this is because we feel that it's most important that there's no room for blaming and that it's too easy to tell others what to do and not take responsibility yourself.  So each sector is charged with focusing on measures that their industry or their business sector can implement.

We're divided into agriculture, business industry, community groups, nonprofits, county government electeds and staff, energy, education, environmental care, general business, health care, municipal government, electeds and staff, oil and other vehicle fuels, and transportation.  And then we do have representation from the Air District on the steering committee as well.

As an example of what is happening so far after the initial outreach, a working committee in each of these sectors is being developed to represent all nine counties, and today the first of the general business sector meetings is happening through teleconferencing and that's this afternoon.  This is an outreach to chambers of commerce and EDC executives throughout the nine counties.

Each of these sectors will be charged with coming up with measures that they believe can be adopted to help the air quality.  Both measures that can be implemented with outside funding and also with outside funding and then they have to prioritize them by benefiting cost.

The summit on April 23 has several focuses.  One obviously is education.  People are coming to the table with different understandings as the topic but primarily on solutions and also a call to action, motivation and mobilization.  And after the summit, there will be group going to D.C. and they are hoping to get designations for the Central Valley as an air quality empowerment zone.

We have a number of different avenues for funding.  And as of yet, no group has shirked their own responsibility but we feel we need to partner with both state and federal government as well.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could you please let us know when you go back to D.C. so we can go with you?

MS. RATTO:  Okay.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I would very much appreciate that.

MS. RATTO:  There will be a pre-summit trip which has been postponed to the first week of March because of the budget and if the budget hasn't passed.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just let us know.  And if you can give us more advanced notice, it'd be great.

MS. RATTO:  Absolutely.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.

MS. RATTO:  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you for coming.

Yes?

MS. CAROL PARMELY:  I just need to make a couple of quick notes.  When you were talking about the…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would you identify yourself?

MS. PARMELY:  I'm sorry.  I'm Carol Parmely.  I have a master's in public health education.  I'm also a clinician.  I'm a nurse practitioner with the Fresno County Correctional Facilities.  I've worked with Juvenile Hall for five years and with the jail for eight.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you're from?

MS. PARMELY:  Fresno.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Fresno.  Okay.

MS. PARMELY:  When you were talking about the county, basically one of my factors is I love health education.  And when Kevin was saying that there are only about 36, 37 public health nurses for community of well over, a county well over a million people, that is a real problem because basically, if the health educators haven't gotten the message out to the lay people, to the teachers, to the administrators, when we go to ask or you go to ask for funding, basically, they're going to cut asthma because everybody sees it as a non-issue or a non-emergent issue.  So if we, as lay people don't see it that way, obviously the state government and the federal government don't see it that way so it will be cut.  Basically, asthma can literally kill people within 15 minutes and a lot of people don’t realize the seriousness of asthma.

The other thing is the public health department assists with free health screenings; and going one step further, Dr. Wood's analysis on education, a lot of the kids, if they are missing as much school as they are missing, have a tendency -- I know this happens more in low-income families -- but have a tendency to end up in juvenile hall and jails.  So we have a separate issue of incarcerated fees and care of people with these type of issues that end up being older adults with chronic illnesses.

When I was at Juvenile Hall, I saw an inordinate amount of kids in there with asthma that I've never seen in the lay population.  That's just another aspect as far as later fees go and costs.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.

Let's go ahead and end this.


I do want to thank again everyone who came -- Kimberly Williams, particularly Kerry, missing school and maybe talk to Dr. Wood.  You can get a pass.


Dr. Wood, thank you so much for helping facilitate as well as participate.  I very much appreciate that.


Susan, thank you for being here.


Sophia, let me say that we will get back to you on the Sanger issue because that's very troublesome and I'm glad -- that's why we have to listen to our constituents because stuff happens that we don't know about here and I think that is absolutely where we don’t want to go, regardless of training.  We have to kind of figure that out and I do appreciate that.  We will get back to you on that within a couple of days.  Give us a day, not the rest of the day but maybe tomorrow, to let you know what we're going to do about that.  I do have some Sanger city council members I can call today as well to kind of figure that out.


Everyone else, I do appreciate your patience.  I am sorry that this went over a little longer.  I'm sorry we started late but we look forward to seeing you in Fresno in a couple of weeks.


Thank you all for coming.


This hearing is adjourned.
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